

Project full title: "Energy Efficiency Knowledge Transfer Framework for Building Retrofitting in the Mediterranean Area

Grant agreement no: 314347



EeB.NMP.2012-6 - Methodologies for Knowledge transfer within the value chain and particularly to SMEs

ee-WiSE Knowledge Transfer Framework Design

Circulation:	Public
Partners:	INTROMAC, X-PANEL, POSITIVE ENERGY
Authors:	Raúl Vega (INTROMAC), María José Bohórquez (INTROMAC), Elias Kouloumis (X- PANEL), Kostas Sotiropoulos (Positive Energy), and Dimitris Raftopoulos (Positive Energy)
Date:	31/01/2014

Doc. Ref. N°: eeWISE-WP4_D4.2_V10_31012014



I



COPYRIGHT

© Copyright 2012 The ee-WiSE Consortium

Consisting of:

- INTROMAC Consorcio para la Gestión del Instituto Tecnológico de Rocas Ornamentales y Materiales de Construcción
- Eolas S.L.
- Projects in Motion Limited
- Bulgarian Construction Chamber
- Asociacion de Investigacion de las Industrias de la Construcción
- Enercya S.C.
- Organismos Limenos Raphinas AE
- Positive Energy
- Ege Universitesi
- Ierides & Michael Architects General Partnership
- X-Panel Ltd
- Istituto Sperimentale per l'Edilizia SPA
- Avaca Technologies Consulting, Informatics AE

This document may not be copied, reproduced, or modified in whole or in part for any purpose without written permission from the ee-WiSE Consortium. In addition an acknowledgement of the authors of the document and all applicable portions of the copyright notice must be clearly referenced.

All rights reserved.

This document may change without notice.

VERSION CONTROL

Version	Date	Comment
01	30 th October 2013	eeWISE-WP4_D4.2_V1_30102013
02	23 rd December 2013	eeWISE-WP4_D4.2_V5_23122013
03	28 th January 2014	eeWISE-WP4_D4.2_V8_28012014
04	31st January 2014	eeWise-WP4_D4.2_V10_31012014

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	INTR	ODUCTION	5
	1.1.	FIELD OF APPLICATION - SCOPE	5
	1.2.	EE-WISE KNOWLEDGE TRANSFER FRAMEWORK DESIGN	7
2.	CORF	RELATING WITH WP3	9
	2.1.	Approach to Knowledge Transfer Tools	10
	2.2.	STEPS TO DEVELOPE AN EFFECTIVE KNOWLEDGE TRANSFER FRAMEWORK (BEST PRACTICE)	12
3.	IDEN	TIFYING TOOLS FOR KNOWLEDGE TRANSFER NEEDS	14
	3.1.	THE ENERGY-EFFICIENT BUILDING RETROFITTING VALUE CHAIN	14
	3.2.	KNOWLEDGE TRANSFER TO DISSEMINATE GENERAL EE RETROFITTING KNOWLEDGE (TASK 4.2)	16
	3.3.	KNOWLEDGE TRANSFER TO BOOST THE MARKET (TASK 4.3)	21
	3.4.	KNOWLEDGE TRANSFER TO PROMOTE PROFESSIONAL CONTACT AND GENERATE KNOWLEDGE (TASK 4.4)	25
	3.5.	KNOWLEDGE TRANSFER TO EXPLOIT R&D FINDINGS (TASK 4.5)	35
	3.6.	Additional tools	41
	3.6.1.	Communication Plan for Society [Task 4.2]4	1
4.	ІСТ Т	RAINING TOOLS FOR LEARNING AND KNOWLEDGE SHARING	43
	4.1.	METHODOLOGICAL BACKGROUND FOR ICT TRAINING TOOLS	43
	4.1.1.	Description of the Target group features4	5
	4.1.2.	Key Competences and learning objectives 4	5
	4.2.	ANALYSIS OF ICT TOOLS WITH COLLABORATION ACTIVITIES	47
	4.2.1.	ICT-based tools and methods used widely in learning approaches4	7
	4.1.	SELECTION OF ICT TRAINING TOOLS	67
5.	τοοι	LS FOR EFFECTIVE KNOWLEDGE TRANSFER	72
	5.1.	KT-ICT TOOLS' STRUCTURE	73
	5.1.1.	Guidelines for creating a Lesson Curriculum7	3
	5.1.2.	Implementation7	8
	5.2.	KT-ICT TOOLS TO DISSEMINATE GENERAL EE RETROFITTING KNOWLEDGE (TASK 4.2)	80
	5.3.	KT-ICT TOOLS TO BOOST THE MARKET (TASK 4.3)	84
	5.4.	KT-ICT TOOLS TO PROMOTE PROFESSIONAL CONTACT AND GENERATE KNOWLEDGE (TASK 4.4)	92
	5.5.	KT-ICT TOOLS TO EXPLOIT R&D FINDINGS (TASK 4.5)	95
6.	CON	CLUSIONS	99





1. INTRODUCTION

The first stage of the implementation phase in the ee-WiSE Project corresponds to WP4 [Figure 1]. The main objective of the Project is to develop a Knowledge Transfer Framework (KTF) within the value chain in the EE Sector for building retrofitting in the Mediterranean area, and with special attention to SMEs. The biggest outcome is the development of a validated tool of knowledge management and transfer, which will include guidelines for business models, market up-take, inter-sectorial cooperation, and certification and tendering. This deliverable is part of the first version of the final tool (Framework).



Figure 1: Technical Work Package overview

1.1. Field of application - Scope

WP4 is structured in 2 different parts which are represented by 2 different deliverables:

D4.1: Virtual Knowledge Transfer Tool

This deliverable contains the work carried out in Task 4.1 - the main objective of which is to materialize in ICT terms, the Framework containing the KT tools designed in D4.2.

• Task 4.1 Virtual Knowledge Transfer Tool Design (VKTT) - Task Leader AVACA

This report will describe the expected features and functions of the Knowledge Management (KM) tools, and a step by step plan that forms the basis for the elaboration of this instrument. The Plan will include a checking strategy that evaluates the accomplishment of the required features, and an enhancement plan for further improved versions which may be developed in subsequent months. The KM tools will entail the creation of a manual which describes the Tool's main objective, as well as a guidebook that shows the way it will work. Understandable texts are expected, whether final users are familiar with virtual technologies or not.



D4.2: ee-WiSE Knowledge Transfer Framework Design

This deliverable will explain the development and design of the different tools for Knowledge Transfer (KT) developed in Task 4.2, Task 4.3, Task 4.4, and Task 4.5 described below:

- Task 4.2: Designing of a battery of activities to produce general knowledge dissemination within the value chain Task Leader X-PANEL
- Task 4.3: Designing of Training Tools to develop and Boost the EE market Task Leader POSITIVE ENERGY
- Task 4.4: Designing of Inter-Agent activities that promote contact and knowledge generation (cooperation) Task Leader POSITIVE ENERGY
- Task 4.5: Designing of pilot experimental demonstrators activities to connect SMEs with existing R&D knowledge. Task Leader INTROMAC

This document is prepared as a conclusion of WP4, in order to impact positively on at least the following strategic issues:

- Addressing general knowledge needs of the value chain: activities for the knowledge dissemination.
- Improve value chain agents' capabilities, with special attention to SMEs: Training tools to develop and boost the EE market
- Encourage interaction between actors in the value chain to resolve KT problems: inter-agent activities that promote contact and knowledge generation
- Activities to encourage interaction between SMEs and R & D generators to improve get tomarket of innovative solutions: Pilot Activities in experimental demonstrator buildings.



Figure 2: Internal functional basis of WP4 and its tasks.



1.2. ee-WiSE Knowledge Transfer Framework Design

Tasks 4.2, 4.3, 4.4, and 4.5 were designed to develop tools as solutions for KT needs. The Description of Work (DoW) document gives the following description for each one of the tasks:

Task 4.2: Designing of a battery of activities to produce general knowledge dissemination within the value chain – Task Leader X-PANEL (Partner n°11)

Previously analyzed in WP3 Knowledge Management tools and techniques will be the basis of these activities, which are aimed to take place in the knowledge dissemination phase. These activities will lead to improve knowledge level of all agents involved, solving knowledge needs and gaps detected in previous analysis. Furthermore, designing a communication plan to society will be considered, in order to raise public awareness about the importance of energy efficiency in homes, defining society as an important player in the market. The base for these activities will be the VKTT previously designed in Task 4.1.

- <u>Task 4.3</u>: <u>Designing of training tools to develop and boost the EE market – Task Leader</u> <u>POSITIVE ENERGY (Partner n°8)</u>

Training tools in EE building retrofitting matters will be designed for different profiles, according to knowledge needs to develop market and paying special attention to SMEs as one main target. Moreover, agents will be able to collaborate between each other by consequently opportunities created. These activities will aim to raise knowledge level of SMEs in a practical way within the EE market.

- <u>Task 4.4: Designing of inter-agent activities that promote contact and knowledge generation</u> (co-creation) Task Leader POSITIVE ENERGY (Partner n°8)

Apart from previous activities designed, inter-agent processes will be taken into account. Active participation, complete attendance of players involved and knowledge generation activities enhancement are the main goals for the activities developed at this stage. The role of independent professionals who act as prescribers in the value chain (engineers, architects, etc.), as well as the administrative authorities and certification bodies will be pointed out in this task. Public and/or private financial agents will be considered in funding schemes activities.

- <u>Task 4.5: Designing of pilot experimental demonstrators activities to connect SMEs with</u> <u>existing R&D knowledge – Task Leader INTROMAC (Partner n°1)</u>

The demonstrated lack of relation between SMEs and R&D sources will be filled through these actions. Opportunities to test new developments or technologies using experimental demonstrator buildings will be designed, in order to enhance SMEs to deal with knowledge generated by researchers and encourage the commercial use of innovative energy efficiency measures or solutions. These activities will also focus on solving existing problems in the real application of EE models and solutions.



In this deliverable Tasks 4.2, 4.3, 4.4, and 4.5 are proposed using a horizontal approach implementing the same steps, but focusing on different subjects. Hence, each task addresses the development of a KT solution for a specific area of the EE Building Retrofitting sector:

TASK	TITLE	SUBJECT ADDRESSED
4.2	Designing of a battery of activities to produce general knowledge dissemination within the value chain	Tools to disseminate general EE retrofitting knowledge.
4.3	Designing of Training Tools to develop and Boost the EE market	Tools to boost the market.
4.4	Designing of Inter-Agent activities that promote contact and knowledge generation (cooperation)	Tools to promote professional contact and generate knowledge.
4.5	Designing of pilot experimental demonstrators activities to connect SMEs with existing R&D knowledge	Tools to exploit R&D findings.

Table 1: Subject addressed per task.

Once determined the scope of each task the field of action for each partner involved is clear. Deliverable 4.2 is built upon the same path each task undertakes as horizontal approach. The steps towards the Tools developed in the ee-WiSE Knowledge Transfer framework Tools deliverable have been the following:

- 1. CORRELATING WITH WP3: This is the previous step considered to analyze the needs found in WP3 and distribute them into the different tasks of WP4. [Section 2]
- 2. IDENTIFYING TOOLS FOR KNOWLEDGE TRANSFER NEEDS: The next step proposes KT activities as possible solutions for each KT need. [Section 3]
- 3. ICT TRAINING TOOLS FOR LEARNING AND KNOWLEDGE SHARING: An ICT training tools research is undertaken in this step. As a result, the most suitable training tools are identified per need. [Section 4]
- 4. TOOLS FOR EFFECTIVE KNOWLEDGE TRANSFER: From the basis of a curriculum lesson plan, each KT need has been developed as a KT Tool considering the identified KT activities as solutions (step 2) and its most suitable ICT training tools (step 3). [Section 5]

The Knowledge Transfer Framework design approach based on training tools analysed in section 4 and section 5 of Deliverable 4.2 have a twofold approach - on one hand to become a valuable guide and be considered as a good practice to any organization or agent that intends to develop training engaging material, and on the other hand to present to the involved agents that have the required information, how to transform it into an effective and efficient framework. Furthermore it analyses theoretical structures for someone to gain the key competencies – knowledge, skills and attitudes - that are necessary for personal fulfilment, development, social inclusion, active citizenship and employment, so as to assist the selection of the proper mechanisms and thus incorporating them into the final output of the project. Finally, a set of guidelines, examples, tips and best practices are presented in order to assist the development of a learning process around new ICT means so as to promote effective knowledge transfer.



2. CORRELATING WITH WP3

Work Package 4 is following upon the foundations laid by Work Package 3. During WP3 a thorough study was performed and a set of Best Practices were presented as a result of the study of Knowledge Transfer Needs and identification of possible solutions.

In D3.1, the **needs** detected for effective knowledge transfer through the retrofitting value chain have been classified into groups, as shown in the following figure. Furthermore, these identified needs were also inserted into the questionnaire that was distributed to the value chain members in order for them to classify the importance of each need.



Figure 3: Needs for Knowledge Transfer

This classification was developed by ENERCYA in WP3, through a statistical analysis of questionnaires responses by several stakeholders in the EE sector and different countries in the Mediterranean area (Spain, Greece, Italy, Malta, Cyprus, Turkey and Bulgaria) taking into account the several countries that have participated and the type of agents of the value chain to identify the most important barriers to knowledge transfer. The information obtained from the questionnaires has been organized, studied and analyzed.

Secondly, a study of the three key criteria: frequency, potential and feasibility, was done and later the quantitative assessment of all barriers to knowledge transfer was developed.



The order of importance of all studied barriers to knowledge was concluded in a global ranking of the needs (represented in a chromatic scale) [Table 2] where is possible to identify the definitive importance of different barriers to knowledge transfer, that is, the segmentation and prioritization of the demand detected.

	TOTAL	
		ASSESSMENT
A5	A5 Training of construction professionals (including architects, civil engineers, building services	
	engineers, project managers, building designers, etc) in retrofit technologies.	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
D3	Occupants need financial support to invest in EE retrofitting technology.	9,29
A1	Training of traditional craftsmen on EE retrofitting innovations.	9,10
D1	Increase business motivation through public R&D initiatives and innovation funding.	9,04
D2	Industry needs financial support to take up results of scientific innovation.	8,93
C4	When communicating research results, more focus needs to be given to practical benefits	8.81
	of the retrofit technology.	
C2	Real-life evaluation of research results.	8,22
E2	Evaluation of publicly funded research projects via it's applicability to the end-user.	8,09
C1	Scientists need to have increased contact with the end-users in order to understand the	7.74
	applicability of their research.	· / ·
A3	Training the business society to access the knowledge stock.	7,71
B1	Establishing network organisations that will coordinate knowledge transfer from innovation	7.57
	groups and assist in implementing innovation into daily building practice.	
C3	R&D to divert their activity rapidly in response to changes in the market.	7,52
E1	EC guidelines for knowledge dissemination from the research institutions.	7,35
B2	Increased interaction amongst research institutions.	7,26
A4	The business society needs to be aware of tools to manage intellectual property.	7,10
ВЗ	Clustering within the retrofit market to provide integrated solutions.	6,22
A2	Exposing the end users to the technological results of the research organizations.	5,97
B4	Connecting technical commercial advice to EPBD - energy performance and requirements	5.57
	of the actual buildings.	

Table 2: Knowledge transfer needs ranking

2.1. Approach to Knowledge Transfer Tools

Needs and Solutions

Based on the extended analysis of needs and solutions for the Retrofitting value chain developed in D3.1, and in order to connect WP4 tasks with the needs and solutions studied before, a previous analysis of this relation is necessary. Hence, the following table shows a first identification of WP4 tasks with the specified needs while maintaining the priority order given in D3.1.



Matrix: Needs/ Agents/ Tasks			Ager	nts invol	lved dire	ctly			
	NEEDS	1. Public Bodies & Finance	 Knowledge Products Providers 	3. Energy Providers	4. Energy & Retrofitting Services	5. Quality assurance	6. Demand	Type of knowledge	WP4 task
A5	Training of construction professionals (including architects, civil engineers, building services engineers, project managers, building designers, etc) in retrofit technologies.	х	х		х			retrofit tech. training	4.4
D3	Occupants need financial support to invest in EE retrofitting technology.	х				х	х	financial	4.3
A1	Training of traditional craftsmen on EE retrofitting innovations.		х	х	х			innovation	4.5
D1	Increase business motivation through public R&D initiatives and innovation funding.	х	х	х	х		х	policies	4.4
D2	Industry needs financial support to take up results of scientific innovation.	Х	х	Х	x	х	х	financial	4.3
C4	When communicating research results, more focus needs to be given to practical benefits of the retrofit technology.	х	х	Х	x		х	scientific	4.5
C2	Real-life evaluation of research results.	х	х		х	х	х	scientific	4.5
E2	Evaluation of publicly funded research projects via it's applicability to the end-user.	Х	х				х	policies	4.4
C1	Scientists need to have increased contact with the end-users in order to understand the applicability of their research.	х	х				х	communication skills	4.5
A3	Training the business society to access the knowledge stock.	х	x	х	х			K. Management Training	4.4
B1	Establishing network organisations that will coordinate knowledge transfer from innovation groups and assist in implementing innovation into daily building practice.	х	х	х	x	х	х	cooperation for innovation	4.4
С3	R&D to divert their activity rapidly in response to changes in the market.	х	х		х		х	cooperation for innovation	4.4
E1	EC guidelines for knowledge dissemination from the research institutions.	х	х		х	х	х	dissemination for R&D projects	4.2
B2	Increased interaction amongst research institutions.	х	х					cooperation for innovation	4.4
A4	The business society needs to be aware of tools to manage intellectual property.	х	х			х		K sharing initiatives	4.3
B3	Clustering within the retrofit market to provide integrated solutions.	х	х	х	х		х	cooperation for integrated sol.	4.4
A2	Exposing the end users to the technological results of the research organizations.		х	х	х		х	dissemination to end-users	4.2
B4	Connecting technical commercial advice to EPBD - energy performance and requirements of the actual buildings.	х	х		x	х	х	integrated advise	4.2

Table 3: Matrix for KT Needs, agents and WP4 tasks, sorted in order of priority.



The previous table shows which group of agents are directly involved in the KT activity and what is the type of knowledge being transferred. Depending on their suitability with WP4 tasks' subject addressed [Table 1], needs and tasks are connected so that the development of the tools that rely on each task must accomplish with the needs identified. Table 4 shows a summary of the distribution of needs per task.

	TOOLS DESIGNED IN WP4-TASKS FOR:	Key agents involved	Identified needs
4.2	KT to disseminate general EE retrofitting knowledge (raise awareness)	non technical agents (society, admin)	E1, A2, B4
4.3	KT to boost the market (raise K for a competitive market)	market agents (SMEs, PO, finance)	D3, D2, A4
4.4	KT to promote professional contact (and generate K)	technical agents (professional, admin) A5, D	01, E2, A3, B1, C3, B2, B3
4.5	KT to exploit R&D findings (through experimental buildings)	scientific community + users of scientific K. (SMEs)	A1, C4, C2, C1

KT: Knowledge Transfer

Table 4: Identification of KT needs per task

2.2. Steps to Develope an Effective Knowledge Transfer Framework (Best Practice)

Below is the methodology to be used when setting up a knowledge transfer method that is to be effective in reaching its goals of providing information to the user. This methodology was presented in D3.1 Knowledge Generation and Transfer Processes Report. So far, the analysis has undertaken questions n°1, 2 and 3. Now WP4 must go beyond and resume with an analysis of questions n°4 & 5. For the full achievement of the methodology, question n°6 will need to be undertaken. With regards to the ee-WiSE Project, the implementation of the last question will take place in WP5 "Framework and Tools Validation within the Value Chain and other Stakeholders".

What knowledge is lacking?	 Determine what knowledge must be transferred. Which are the technologies for which the end-user lacks knowledge? What type of knowledge is lacking? (technical, practical, technology adaptability, financial, environmental, policy, etc.)
Why is the knowledge needed?	 2. Be able to articulate why the knowledge must be transferred. Why is this knowledge needed? Will it improve retrofitting take-up? Will it increase competence of the service providers to provide a better service to the customer? Will it ensure that the technology is applied in the best possible way?



Knowledge demand & supply.	 3. Identify to whom the knowledge needs to be transferred. Which are the agent groups that need to receive this knowledge? Consider all value chain agents and determine which of them would benefit by receiving the knowledge to be transferred. Make sure to create a system that will reach out to, invite and disseminate information to all those who would benefit from the knowledge transfer. Identify the knowledge providers.
Knowledge transfer methods.	 4. Determine how the knowledge will be transferred. What is the best method for knowledge transfer considering the knowledge being dealt with? Does the information need to be demonstrated practically? Can the knowledge be stored for future reference in a central repository accessible to all the receiving value chain groups?
Execute the knowledge transfer.	 5. Transfer the knowledge. Invite the relevant knowledge providers and receivers to become actively engaged in the knowledge transfer process. Provide knowledge transfer tools that are easily available and easy to employ. Ensure that all agents are skilled enough to be able to use the knowledge transfer tool effectively. Promote the knowledge transfer mechanism.
Test the effectiveness of the measures.	 6. Test knowledge transfer by observing its recall and use. Actively monitor and quantify the knowledge transfer activity. How many of the knowledge providers were willing to share information? What are the reasons for their lack of participation? Collect feedback from the knowledge providers and receivers. How many knowledge receivers were actively receiving information? Where they satisfied with the information provided? Did they have the possibility to ask for further information on the subject matter? Was the information provided relevant to the receiver? Did the information provided make an impact on the receiver's outlook and take-up of retrofitting technologies?

Table 5: Steps to Developing an Effective Knowledge Transfer Framework



3. IDENTIFYING TOOLS FOR KNOWLEDGE TRANSFER NEEDS

This section aims to propose KT activities as possible solutions for each KT need. Each need will be analyzed within its assigned task hereafter. However, it is essential that each KT need determines the specific agents actively involved as *Receivers* and *Providers* of the KT activity. Hence a previous review over the Energy-Efficient Building Retrofitting value chain is incorporated below.

3.1. The Energy-Efficient Building Retrofitting value chain

The agents directly involved in the KT needs were defined in deliverables D1.1 and D2.1. The definition of the value chain was finalized with the agents and groups mentioned below [Figure 4Figure



Figure 4: Energy Efficiency Retrofitting Sector's Value chain

The definition of each agent and group is specified as follows:

GROUP 1 - Public Bodies and Finance

This group is formed by the Enabling environment, i.e. infrastructure and policies, institutes and processes that shape the market environment.

- Public administration and authorities (ministries, municipalities, etc.) (PubA) classified as:
 - National authorities,
 - Regional authorities
 - Local authorities
- Standardization bodies (Standard)



• Banks, Financial Agents, Promoters, Subsidizers (Finance) <u>GROUP 2 - Knowledge and Products Providers</u>

This group is formed by Knowledge and Products Providers:

- Technical solutions developers companies, (TechSol)
- Software developers (Software)
- R&D Institutes, Universities, (R&D)
- Meteorologists (Climate)
- Manufacturers of building elements, building materials (Manufacturer)
- Installers

GROUP 3 - Energy Providers

This group is formed by Energy Providers, from renewable energy companies and electric power transmission grid operators to energy distributors.

- Energy distributors (EDist)
- Renewable energy companies (RenewEn)
- Electric Power Transmission Grid Operators (GridOp)

GROUP 4 - Energy and Retrofitting Services Providers

This group is formed by Energy and Retrofitting Services Providers: Architecture and engineering companies, energy auditing firms and energy service companies.

- Architecture and Engineering Companies (A&E)
- Energy auditing firms (Audit)
- Energy Service Companies (ESCOs)

GROUP 5 - Quality assurance

This group is formed by actors in charge of the quality assurance: Certification bodies, intellectual property bodies and patent offices and life cycle assessment companies.

- Certification bodies (Certificate)
- Intellectual Property bodies and Patent offices (PO)
- Life cycle assessment companies (LCA).

<u>GROUP 6 – Demand</u>

- Homeowners and building users, occupants (Occupants)
- Real Estate agents, householders and building managers (BuildManage)

In order to identify the different tools that will help resolve the KT needs - questions 4 & 5 described in Section 2.2 Steps to Develope an Effective Knowledge Transfer Framework - have been explored to conduct an analysis of the best tool for each case. The following sections include this analysis per need, identifying the agents who act as Receivers and Providers in each case.

- RECEIVER: Agent of the value chain that participates in the KT activity by receiving specific knowledge from the Provider.
- PROVIDER: Agent of the value chain in charge of developing the knowledge that needs to be transferred to the Receivers.

3.2. Knowledge Transfer to disseminate general EE retrofitting knowledge (Task 4.2)

E1. EC guidelines for knowledge dissemination from the research institutions.

Knowledge receivers: R&D

Knowledge providers: Pub. Ad. / Gov/ Software/ TechSol/ Manufacture/ Installer/ ESCO/ A&E / Audit / Certificate/ BuildManage/ Occupant

Type of knowledge: Research Project Results

Solutions (D3.1)

- professional knowledge brokers
- knowledge transfer at a cluster level
- clear definition of the end-user/target groups
- 4. Knowledge transfer methods: Determine how the knowledge will be transferred

	The set of guidelines regulating the information flow within a research project could include:
 What is the best method 	 + having professional knowledge brokers available to assist in the organization of dialogue events to pass on results of research projects,
transfer considering the knowledge being dealt	 + strategies to implement knowledge transfer at a cluster level and not only at project level,
with?	 + a clear definition of the end-user/target groups for a particular project defining their needs and potential in order to be able to provide coherent knowledge resulting from a research project that will be included in the public deliverables.
 Does the information need to be demonstrated practically? 	Model (Demo) Solutions are not applicable for this specific need.
 Can the knowledge be stored for future reference in a central repository accessible to all the receiving value chain groups? 	The knowledge can be stored in various formats (research papers, educational material, manuals, articles, blogs, etc.) for future reference.
5. Execute the knowledge t	ransfer: Transfer the knowledge.
 Invite the relevant knowledge providers and 	The knowledge providers that are affected by need E1 include:



actively engaged in the knowledge transfer process	 + Public Admin / GOV + Software Developers / Technical Solutions / Manufacturers / Installers + ESCO / Architect & Engineer / Audit Firms + Certificate Entries + Building Managers / Occupants The knowledge receivers that are affected by need E1 include: + R&D
 Provide knowledge transfer tools that are easily available and easy to employ. 	 Appropriate (easily available and easy to employ) knowledge transfer tools may be based on the 3 projects below that will serve as a reference for the tools: MARIE - Mediterranean Building Rethinking For Energy Efficiency Improvement. The mission of the MARIE project is to co-construct a strategy for energy efficiency in existing buildings in the Mediterranean region. The main idea to replicate here is the development of a model "solution" regarding policy, funding mechanisms, products & services. [http://www.marie-medstrategic.eu/en.html] IRH-Med - Innovative Residential Housing for the Mediterranean. The idea here is to develop common guidelines & policies to improve the competitiveness of innovative and sustainable models for housing that respond to the challenges of a growing population. [http://www.irh-med.eu/] Educa-RUE - Energy Efficiency Paths in Educational Buildings. The project will develop actions (legislation, certification, education, finance, training, information and dissemination) for the implementation of the Directive on local building. Again here the idea is to develop a common model/strategy, but Educa-RUE is more elaborate and addresses also training, certification and dissemination. [http://www.educarue.eu/]
 Ensure that all agents are skilled enough to be able to use the knowledge transfer tool effectively. 	The availability of professional knowledge brokers who will assist in the organization of dialogue events to pass on results of research projects will ensure that all agents can use the knowledge transfer tools effectively.
 Promote the knowledge transfer mechanism. 	A clear definition of the end-user/target groups needs and potential will further facilitate the process.



A2. Exposing the end users to the technological results of the research organizations.

Knowledge receivers: BuildManage/ Occupant

Knowledge providers: Software/ TechSol/ Manufacture/ Installer/ R&D/ RenewEn/ ESCO/ A&E

Type of knowledge: Research Results

Solutions (D3.1)

- End-User mobilisation Events,
- Training & Education Actions,
- Model (Demo) Solutions, or Web / Social Media
- 4. Knowledge transfer methods: Determine how the knowledge will be transferred

 What is the best method for the knowledge transfer considering the knowledge being dealt with? 	The information dealt with is research results for R&D organisations - research papers on new technological solutions on EE. This information/knowledge can be best transferred through, End-User mobilisation Events, Training & Education Actions, Model (Demo) Solutions, or Web / Social Media.
 Does the information need to be demonstrated practically? 	Model (Demo) Solutions has been used in different regions / countries (INTEGER Millennium House, PassREg) as a way to effectively transfer knowledge resulting from research.
 Can the knowledge be stored for future reference in a central repository accessible to all the receiving value chain groups? 	The knowledge can be stored in various formats (research papers, demo videos, educational material, manuals, articles, blogs, etc.) for future reference.
5. Execute the knowledge t	transfer: Transfer the knowledge.
 Invite the relevant knowledge providers and receivers to become actively engaged in the knowledge transfer process 	 The knowledge providers that are affected by need A2 include: + Software Developers / Technical Solutions / Manufacturers / Installers / R&D + Renewable Energy + ESCO / Architect & Engineer The knowledge receivers that are affected by need A2 include: + Occupants / Build. Manage.
 Provide knowledge 	Appropriate (easily available and easy to employ) knowledge transfer tools may be based on the 3 projects above with the following aims:

- transfer tools that are easily available and easy to employ.
 ECHO ACTION - to encourage active involvement of endusers, local economic actors, financial institutes, and local energy providers to facilitate the implementation of local energy plans.
 - 2. Social Housing Action to reduce energy consumption through



	good practices sharing on retrofitting technologies that address energy concerns and changes in behaviour.
	 take your energy back - to mobilise end-users through a Smart-e Buildings campaign (an interactive web portal linked to the main social networks like Twitter and Facebook).
	The main idea that can be replicated from the above actions is how to mobilise End-Users through:
	 + Information and Dissemination Events, + Training & Education Actions, + Web / Social Media
 Ensure that all agents are skilled enough to be able to use the knowledge transfer tool effectively. 	For the purpose of ensuring that all agents can use the knowledge transfer tools effectively, specific instructions and information should be provided in printed and electronic form.
 Promote the knowledge transfer mechanism. 	The tools / actions, as well as, the specific instructions and information (about how to participate in the actions) can be disseminated through electronic or traditional media and be promoted through face to face info-events.

B4. Connecting technical commercial advice to EPBD - energy performance and requirements of the actual buildings.

Knowledge receivers: Pub. Ad. / Gov/ Standard / Software/ TechSol/ Installer/ ESCO/ A&E / Audit Knowledge providers: ESCO/ A&E / Audit / Certificate/ Occupant

Type of knowledge: Technical Commercial Advice Solutions (D3.1)

- commercial advice in line with national EPBD requirements
- clustering framework
- offering the relevant and complete information to the consumers
- 4. Knowledge transfer methods: Determine how the knowledge will be transferred

The commercial advice that is made available to the end user must be in line with the national EPBD requirements and the national action plan for each country.

One method for implementing this solution is to have a network, clustering framework, in which the public authority could guide the business society about what information is required by the building owners.

It will then be in the business society's interest to keep competitive by offering the relevant and complete information to the consumers.

What is the best method for the knowledge transfer considering the knowledge being dealt with?



 Does the information need to be demonstrated practically? 	Model (Demo) Solutions has been used in different regions / countries (INTEGER Millennium House, PassREg) as a way to effectively transfer knowledge resulting from research.
 Can the knowledge be stored for future reference in a central repository accessible to all the receiving value chain groups? 	The knowledge can be stored in various formats (educational material, manuals, articles, etc.) for future reference.
5. Execute the knowledge t	transfer: Transfer the knowledge.
 Invite the relevant knowledge providers and receivers to become actively engaged in the knowledge transfer process 	The knowledge providers that are affected by this need include: + ESCO / Architect & Engineer / Audit Firms + Certificate Entries + Occupants The knowledge receivers that are affected by this need include: + Public Admin / GOV / Standarization + Software Developers / Technical Solutions / Installers + ESCO / Architect & Engineer / Audit Firms
 Provide knowledge transfer tools that are easily available and easy to employ. 	 Appropriate (that are easily available and easy to employ) knowledge transfer tools may be based on the 3 projects above with the following aims: 1. ENEA – Italian National Agency for New Technologies, Energy and Sustainable Economic Development. ENEA provides its support to national enterprises to enhance their technologies, increase their competitiveness and make them more environmentally friendly. [http://old.enea.it/com/ingl/] 2. FOREST - Fostering Efficient long term Supply Partnerships. The project will support businesses through 3 main types of activities: a) a best practice tool-kit, b) business-to-business networking, c) direct capacity building to pilot new supply chain models and partnerships. [http://www.forestprogramme.com/] 3. PadovaFIT! The PadovaFIT! scheme aims to retrofit 2,250 apartments, through a team of experienced local private stakeholders (an ESCO, a cooperative bank, a higher education non-profit foundation and an engineering company). [http://www.padovanet.it/]
 Ensure that all agents are skilled enough to be able to use the knowledge transfer tool effectively. 	For the purpose of ensuring that all agents can use the knowledge transfer tools effectively, where possible, technical commercial jargon should also include examples of observed energy performance observed reductions for actual buildings in order to better connect to the energy certification.



 Promote the knowledge transfer mechanism.
 The tools / actions, as well as, the specific instructions and information (about how to participate in the actions) can be disseminated through electronic or traditional media and be promoted through face to face info-events.

3.3. Knowledge Transfer to boost the market (Task 4.3)

D3. Occupants nee	d financial support to invest in EE retrofitting technology.	
 Knowledge receivers: Occupants/ Finance Knowledge providers: PubA/Gov/Certification Authorities Type of knowledge: Financial Solutions (D3.1) The development of appropriate financial instruments to promote the installation of energy efficient housing and retrofit technologies Control of the eligibility to make use of the financial benefits in each country could be done through a measurement of the building energy efficiency level Set up of beneficial grants, green loans and tax revisions (value added tax, property tax income tax) 		
4. Knowledge transfer meth	nods: Determine how the knowledge will be transferred	
 What is the best method for the knowledge transfer considering the knowledge being dealt with? 	One of the best methods could be forums or trainings where experts from R&D, Finance institutions will discuss (explain) the need, opportunities to invest in EE retrofitting technology. Financial institutions should create new products optimal for different occupants, and also government can reduce taxation in energy efficiency buildings.	
 Does the information need to be demonstrated practically? 	Yes, in order to increase the awareness of the project among other occupants. Also to provide the gains/losses of implementing the retrofitting project.	
 Can the knowledge be stored for future reference in a central repository accessible to all the receiving value chain groups? 	Yes, financial institutions that will create new products to support the occupants should be transparent and easily understood by them. Also R&D should be able to explain the needs and the benefits from the investments in EE retrofitting technology.	
5. Execute the knowledge t	ransfer: Transfer the knowledge.	
 Invite the relevant knowledge providers and receivers to become actively engaged in the knowledge transfer process 	Knowledge receivers: Occupants/ Finance Knowledge providers: PubA/Gov/Certification Authorities. A suitable practice can be NewCastle Investment in Housing Retrofit (NEWINRETRO)	



 Provide knowledge transfer tools that are easily available and easy to employ. 	In order to drive the knowledge providers to effectively transfer their technology, guidelines addressed to them must be developed. These guidelines will act as a tool to take the EE technology or product to the traditional workforce and the end users. The guidelines will be designed to be implemented in different type of activities such as: videos of economist that easily explain the existing financial tools, web tools that visualize the ROI (Return Of Investment), Forums, Webinars. Appropriate (that are easily available and easy to employ) knowledge transfer tools may be based on the project NEWINRETRO. [http://warmupnorth.com/]
 Ensure that all agents are skilled enough to be able to use the knowledge transfer tool effectively. 	As soon as occupants and financial institutions understand the benefits of retrofitting then it will be possible to assess the skills of knowledge transfer.
 Promote the knowledge transfer mechanism. 	Through the ee-WiSE Knowledge Transfer Framework.

D2. Industry needs financial support to take up results of scientific innovation.

Knowledge receivers: Finance/Gov/ Occupants/

Knowledge providers: Certificate/ TechSol/Manufactures/Installers/ RenewEn/ESCO

Type of knowledge: Financial

Solutions (D3.1)

- Develop the appropriate financial instruments to faster cooperation between industry and R&D entities
- Install an associated quality assurance scheme
- 4. Knowledge transfer methods: Determine how the knowledge will be transferred

•	What is the best method for the knowledge transfer considering the knowledge being dealt with?	The best method is the attendance to expo fairs, seminars where the industry experts and R&D institutes can attend and presents there research which then can be implemented in Educational buildings where the impact can be measured. Also Tax breaks on activities that promote innovation activities.
•	Does the information need to be demonstrated practically?	Such information cannot be demonstrated in a practical way.
	Can the knowledge be stored for future reference in a central repository accessible to all the receiving value	Yes, financial institutions that will create new products to support the Industry should store the knowledge and the impact outcomes of the products in order to investigate future products implementation. Such a Knowledge needs to be available to all



chain groups?	value chain groups and actors in order for them to be familiar whit the available financial tools.
5. Execute the knowledge t	ransfer: Transfer the knowledge.
 Invite the relevant knowledge providers and receivers to become actively engaged in the knowledge transfer process 	Knowledge receivers: Finance/Gov/ Occupants Knowledge providers: Certificate/ TechSol/Manufactures/Installers/ RenewEn/ESCO A practice that can solve this issue is Energy Efficiency Paths in Educational Buildings.
 Provide knowledge transfer tools that are easily available and easy to employ. 	In order to drive the knowledge providers to effectively transfer their technology, guidelines addressed to them must be developed. These guidelines will act as a tool to take the EE technology or new products and material from the R&D institutes and make it available on market. The guidelines will be designed to be implemented across different types of activities such as: videos of economist that easily explain the existing financial tools, web tools Forums, Webinars. Appropriate (that are easily available and easy to employ) knowledge transfer tools may be based on the 1 project Energy Efficiency Paths in Educational Buildings. The project will develop actions for the qualification of the technicians and certifiers which will have a key role in the implementation of the Directive on local Buildings.
 Ensure that all agents are skilled enough to be able to use the knowledge transfer tool effectively. 	As soon as the Financial institutions understand the benefits of retrofitting then it will be possible for them to create the financial tools (loans, investment in EE Companies, etc) to support and to help the Industry to market the results of scientific information.
 Promote the knowledge transfer mechanism. 	Through the ee-WiSE Knowledge Transfer Framework aiming to implement activities such as R&D funding and networking/clustering schemes offered by public bodies.



A4. The business society needs to be aware of tools to manage intellectual property.

Knowledge receivers: PubA/Gov

Knowledge providers: R&D// Software/Manufacture

Type of knowledge: K sharing initiatives

Solutions (D3.1)

- Revaluate the question of a single European ownership model especially for publicly funded research.
- Initiatives originating from third-party organizations providing consultancy on knowledge sharing would be of further benefit to the business society.
- Intellectual property training. Access to online journals some of which are open access and free.
- 4. Knowledge transfer methods: Determine how the knowledge will be transferred

•	What is the best method for the knowledge transfer considering the knowledge being dealt with?	One of the best methods could be forums or trainings where experts from industry will discuss (explain) how Intellectual property can help the promotion and dissemination of new products and at the same time protect the investment.
-	Does the information need to be demonstrated practically?	Yes, a practical demonstration of the available tools will help the business society to understand the benefits of the tools and at the same time will expose the innovation to the market.
	Can the knowledge be stored for future reference in a central repository accessible to all the receiving value chain groups?	Yes, all patents have to be stored in a common repository for future reference.
	5. Execute the knowledge t	ransfer: Transfer the knowledge.
•	Invite the relevant knowledge providers and receivers to become actively engaged in the knowledge transfer process	Knowledge receivers: PubA/Gov Knowledge providers: R&D// Software/Manufacture Practice that can be used are (ESCOLIMBURG2020, MARIE)
•	Provide knowledge	In order to drive the knowledge providers to effectively transfer their technology, guidelines addressed to them must be developed. The guidelines will be designed to be implemented in different type of activities such as videos and pedagets on how to complete
	transfer tools that are easily available and easy to employ.	the relevant forms for patent submission, the way of use of the repositories of existing patents. Forums that will introduce the audience with the benefits of intellectual property rights.
		ESCOLIMBURG2020- the project aims to accelerate and upscale

the concrete implementation of energy efficiency and renewable energy measures in the public building stock by making use of an



	ESCO-model, relieving the local authorities from complex investment processes. [http://www.escolimburg2020.be/] MARIE- to develop and adopt new regulatory requirements and new institutional tools to achieve the goals established by the new European Directive (EPBD); find new financial mechanisms that can be used to stimulate the thermal rehabilitation of buildings.
 Ensure that all agents are skilled enough to be able to use the knowledge transfer tool effectively. 	As soon as the Business society understand the benefits of Intellectual property right and then it will be possible to assess the skills of knowledge transfer.
 Promote the knowledge transfer mechanism. 	Through the ee-WiSE Knowledge Transfer Framework.

3.4. Knowledge Transfer to promote professional contact and generate knowledge (Task 4.4)

A5 Training of construction professionals (including architects, civil engineers, building services engineers, project managers, building designers, etc.) in retrofit technologies

Knowledge receivers: A&E

Knowledge providers: A&E/R&D/TechSol/ PubA/ Gov

Type of knowledge: Retrofit Technology Training

Solutions (D3.1)

- Implement higher level of education for construction professionals.
- Increase or adopt Curriculum for Bachelor or Master Degrees.
- 4. Knowledge transfer methods: Determine how the knowledge will be transferred

•	What is the best method for the knowledge transfer considering the knowledge being dealt with?	One of the best ways is to create events (Presentations) to inform them about the new technologies, materials that can be used nowadays. Also, showing the contrast between old methodology and new ones. Given the fact that they acquired skills through practice there is always something new to learn.
•	Does the information need to be demonstrated practically?	Of course the information should be demonstrated practically in order to observe the pros/cons of the development. Being experts in the field will be easily for them to give a feedback.
•	Can the knowledge be stored for future reference in a central repository accessible to all the receiving value chain groups?	Yes. It is crucial to store the knowledge and to transfer it to the new generation of construction professionals. Also Short courses with informal learnings should be provided.



5.	5. Execute the knowledge transfer: Transfer the knowledge.	
Inv kno rec act kno pro	ite the relevant owledge providers and ceivers to become tively engaged in the owledge transfer occess	Knowledge receivers: A&E Knowledge providers: A&E/R&D/ TechSol/ PubA/ Gov Practice that can be used Schneider Electric- Energy University
 Pro tra ea to 	ovide knowledge insfer tools that are sily available and easy employ.	As mentioned before architects, civil engineers, building services engineers, project managers, building designers acquired their skills by practice however new courses at universities or revising curriculum for bachelor and master Degree will improve the knowledge transfer. Schneider Electric- Energy University- the Energy university is a free online, educational resource, offering vendor-neutral courses on energy efficiency topics to help the user identify, implement, and monitor efficiency improvements within an organization. Some more examples can be taken from the Project BUILD UP Skills Malta [http://www.buildupskillsmalta.com/]
 Ens ski to tra 	sure that all agents are lled enough to be able use the knowledge unsfer tool effectively.	As soon the new information will be presented and demonstrated the experienced members will easilybe able to use the knowledge transfer tool. Entry level agents will need to be prepared.
Pro tra	omote the knowledge Insfer mechanism.	Short courses together with informal learnings, forums, seminars.

D1. Increase business motivation through public R&D initiatives and innovation funding.

Knowledge receivers: Occupants/Installers

Knowledge providers: R&D/Manufacturer/Software/A&E/RenewEN/

Type of knowledge: Policies

Solutions (D3.1)

- There is a need for master plans involving public and private actors in R&D activity.
- Recommendation to have both plans EU wide and R&D plans that support R&D activities.
- 4. Knowledge transfer methods: Determine how the knowledge will be transferred
- What is the best method for the knowledge
 transfer considering the knowledge being dealt with?
 Dealing with innovation funding there is a high need of funds. Therefore meetings presentations of the ideas to the shareholders like (banks, financial institutions) are welcome.



 Does the information need to be demonstrated practically? 	Such information's cannot be demonstrated in a practical way.
 Can the knowledge be stored for future reference in a central repository accessible to all the receiving value chain groups? 	No, given the fact that each case is different therefore funds will be attracted different.
5. Execute the knowledge tra	nsfer: Transfer the knowledge.
 Invite the relevant 	Knowledge receivers: Occupants/Installers Knowledge providers:
receivers to become	R&D/Manufacturer/Software/A&E/RenewEN/
actively engaged in the knowledge transfer process	Practice than can be used MARIE [<u>http://www.marie-</u> medstrategic.eu/en.html]
process	
 Provide knowledge transfer tools that are easily available and easy to employ. 	In order to drive the knowledge providers to effectively transfer their technology, guidelines addressed to them must be developed. These guidelines will act as a tool to take the EE technology or new products and material from the R&D institutes and make it available on market. The guidelines will be designed to be implemented in different type of activities such as: videos of economist that easily explain the existing financial tools, web tools Forums, Webinars.
	MARIE- to develop and adopt new regulatory requirements and new institutional tools to achieve the goals established by the new European Directive (EPBD); Find new financial mechanisms that can be used to stimulate the thermal rehabilitation of buildings
 Ensure that all agents are skilled enough to be able to use the knowledge transfer tool effectively. 	Knowing which are the shareholders in this case, by default all agent are skilled enough to use the knowledge transfer tool.
 Promote the knowledge transfer mechanism. 	An increase in public R&D funding may be necessary for realizing the benefits of technological change, but at the same time the technological change, providing an opportunity to increase profits, may be the impetus to innovate a new institutional arrangement.



E2.Evaluation of publicly funded research projects via it's applicability to the end- user.

Knowledge receivers: PubA/Gov/Build Managers

Knowledge providers: R&D

Type of knowledge: Policies

Solutions (D3.1)

- Is to involve the end users in the evaluation of research projects.
- By including project evaluation criteria that will rate the final result.
- 4. Knowledge transfer methods: Determine how the knowledge will be transferred
- What is the best method The best method for dealing with this issue is to create special for the knowledge forums or open events, where the new project will be presented to transfer considering the the society, also will be presented the benefits of the knowledge being dealt implementation. with? Does the information need to be demonstrated Such information cannot be demonstrated in a practical way. practically? Can the knowledge be stored for future reference in a central Publicly funded research agendas do not always address the needs of the end-users. repository accessible to all the receiving value chain groups? 5. Execute the knowledge transfer: Transfer the knowledge. Knowledge receivers: PubA/Gov/Build Managers Invite the relevant Knowledge providers: R&D knowledge providers and receivers to become Best practice Programme for energy-efficient retrofitting of actively engaged in the Bulgarian Households, Energy Efficiency in Low Income Housing in knowledge transfer the Mediterranean. process In order to drive the knowledge providers to effectively transfer their technology, guidelines addressed to them must be developed. These guidelines will act as a tool to take the EE technology or new products and material from the R&D institutes and make it available on market. Provide knowledge The guidelines will be designed to be implemented in different transfer tools that are type of activities such as: videos of economist that easily explain easily available and easy the existing financial tools, web tools Forums, Webinars. to employ. Programme for energy-efficient retrofitting of Bulgarian Households – the project covers 36 urban centres for three years period (2012-2015). Financial assistance for the implementation of energy efficiency measures will be provided to home owner

association registered under the act of condominium management.

	Energy Efficiency in Low Income Housing in the Mediterranean- development of integrated policies to promote energy efficiency in LIH in the Mediterranean through project result capitalisation. Implementation of a large scale pilot experimentation of technical and financial solutions in 420 low incoming dwellings to improve energy efficiency. Promotion of intelligent energy management system at local and regional level through the experimentation of multi-energy smart meters in 135 low incoming dwellings.
 Ensure that all agents are skilled enough to be able to use the knowledge transfer tool effectively. 	There is no need to be all skilled. Dealing with end user it will be difficult for them to understand. Therefore will be a need to present the pro/cons of the implementation of the projects.
 Promote the knowledge transfer mechanism. 	Short courses together with informal learnings, forums, seminars.

A3.Training the business society to access the knowledge stock.		
Knowledge receivers: PubA/Inst	tallers/ A&E	
Knowledge providers: TechSol/	Manufacturer/Software/ESCO	
Type of knowledge: Knowledge	Management training	
Solutions (D3.1)		
 Training for staff an Build an educational knowledge transfer. 	d enterprises. framework that will provide a qualification to the new generation of	
4. Knowledge transfer methods: Determine how the knowledge will be transferred		
 What is the best method for the knowledge transfer considering the knowledge being dealt with? 	The best method is to create a framework that will provide information about the retrofitting process, types of retrofitting and how it works.	
 Does the information need to be demonstrated practically? 	Assuring that business society is not prepared for this knowledge. There is a need of practice to understand how to deal with it.	
 Can the knowledge be stored for future reference in a central repository accessible to all the receiving value chain groups? 	Yes the knowledge could be stored. And will be used as a base for the future projects.	
5. Execute the knowledge transfer: Transfer the knowledge.		
 Invite the relevant knowledge providers and receivers to become 	Knowledge receivers: PubA/Installers/ A&E	



actively engaged in the knowledge transfer process	Knowledge providers: TechSol/Manufacturer/Software/ESCO Best practice Schneider Electric- Energy University, Social Housing Action to Reduce Energy Consumption.
 Provide knowledge transfer tools that are easily available and easy to employ. 	Create an operation pattern to narrow the gap of knowledge sharing among groups. Schneider Electric- Energy University- the Energy university is a free online, educational resource, offering vendor-neutral courses on energy efficiency topics to help the user identify, implement, and monitor efficiency improvements within an organization. Social Housing Action to Reduce Energy Consumption- share forums were set up for each of the 8 countries involved; training sessions took place , involving 1000 participants, mainly residents, but also energy experts, building managers, housing funds, local authorities, teachers and architecture students
 Ensure that all agents are skilled enough to be able to use the knowledge transfer tool effectively. 	Knowing the fact that business society will deal with knowledge stock. There will be need of training and practice to be ready to access the Knowledge stock.
 Promote the knowledge transfer mechanism. 	In order to promote this tool is required (forums, training sessions)

B1. Establishing network organizations that will coordinate knowledge transfer from innovation groups and assist in implementing innovation into daily building practice.

Knowledge receivers: Standard, Pub. Ad., E. Dist., Renew. En., Grid Op., A&E, Audit, ESCO, Installers. Knowledge providers: R&D, Tech. Sol, Climate, Software, Manufacturers, Standard, Pub. Ad., E. Dist., Renew. En., Grid Op., A&E, Audit, ESCO, Installers.

Type of knowledge: Cooperation for innovation Solutions (D3.1)

- formation of consortia and energy-efficiency networks
- information transfer through media exposure, organization of exhibitions, documentation archiving, demonstration projects, training plans, networking
- Creation of a EU-wide recognized standardization body.
- 4. Knowledge transfer methods: Determine how the knowledge will be transferred



 What is the best method for the knowledge transfer considering the knowledge being dealt with? 	 The best method to start a cluster initiative online. The easiest way would be putting together other existing networks in each Mediterranean country. The networks related to each type of agent should be considered. Once created the network can share interesting material from each country like media exposure, organization of exhibitions, documentation archiving, demonstration projects, training plans, and networking. A proposal to request involved entities to join this network can be developed for the consideration of an EU standardization body.
 Does the information need to be demonstrated practically? 	It is not necessary. The aim is to innovate on daily building practice by connecting these agents with innovative technologies agents.
 Can the knowledge be stored for future reference in a central repository accessible to all the receiving value chain groups? 	The network can decide to facilitate a library of related contents for the users.
5. Execute the knowledge t	ransfer: Transfer the knowledge.
 Invite the relevant knowledge providers and receivers to become actively engaged in the knowledge transfer process 	Agents involved are: Knowledge receivers: Standard, Pub. Ad., E. Dist., Renew. En., Grid Op., A&E, Audit, ESCO, Installers. Knowledge providers: R&D, Tech. Sol, Climate, Software, Manufacturers, Standard, Pub. Ad., E. Dist., Renew. En., Grid Op., A&E, Audit, ESCO, Installers.
 Provide knowledge transfer tools that are easily available and easy to employ. 	 The tool should establish a connection with other networks in the sector related to daily building practice and with innovation in EE retrofitting. Should provide K sharing opportunities online, such as forums, debates, etc, or a way to contact each other or publishing news.
 Ensure that all agents are skilled enough to be able to use the knowledge transfer tool effectively. 	Knowing the fact that member will deal with knowledge stock. There will be need of training and practice to be ready to access the Knowledge stock.
 Promote the knowledge transfer mechanism. 	Through the ee-WiSE Knowledge Transfer Framework.



C3. R&D to divert their activity rapidly in response to changes in the market. Knowledge receivers: Occupant/ Gov/ PubA/ Build Manager/ Installer/ A&E Knowledge providers: R&D/ TechSol/ Type of knowledge: Cooperation for innovation Solutions (D3.1) Modifications and improvements to the innovation that are resulting from a change originating in response to market feedback Form academic-industry collaborations to improve the effectiveness of the innovation process. 4. Knowledge transfer methods: Determine how the knowledge will be transferred What is the best method One of the best methods could be forums or trainings where for the knowledge experts from R&D and occupants will discuss (explain) the need of transfer considering the new materials and technologies in Building EE and through the use in real buildings the value of each solution will be feed back to knowledge being dealt the R&D institutes. with? Does the information need Yes, in order to have the real life experience of innovation and to be demonstrated corresponding feedback from the implementation of the practically? innovation, the practical demonstration is a necessity. Can the knowledge be stored for future It is mandatory to store the knowledge for future reference and reference in a central repository accessible to also in order to achieve solutions when the technology allows it. all the receiving value chain groups? 5. Execute the knowledge transfer: Transfer the knowledge. Invite the relevant knowledge providers and Knowledge receivers: Occupant/ Gov/ PubA/ Build Manager/ receivers to become Installer / A&E actively engaged in the Knowledge providers: R&D/ TechSol/ knowledge transfer process In order to drive the knowledge providers to effectively transfer their technology, guidelines addressed to them must be developed. These guidelines will act as a tool in order to let the R&D understand which are the needs of traditional workforce and the end users. The Provide knowledge guidelines will be designed to be implemented in different type of transfer tools that are activities such as: easily available and easy videos in which the problems can be demonstrated, to employ. Forums where the exchange of problems and solutions can be debated, Webinars for the Academic Industry cooperation.



- Ensure that all agents are skilled enough to be able to use the knowledge transfer tool effectively.
- Promote the knowledge transfer mechanism.

R&D has to be in close cooperation with the market actors in order to identify market changes rapidly. To do that the market actors has to build up the communication ability.

Through the ee-WiSE Knowledge Transfer Framework.

B2. Increased interaction amongst research institutions.

Knowledge receivers: PubA/Gov

Knowledge providers: R&D

Type of knowledge: Cooperation for innovation

Solutions (D3.1)

- movement of academic staff between R&D institutions
- creation of knowledge banks,
- setting up of online forums,
- organization of brokerage events for creating collaborative joint research activities on specific retrofitting topics

4. Knowledge transfer methods: Determine how the knowledge will be transferred

The best method is the attendance to expo fairs, where R&D institutes can attend and presents there research. It also applies the creation of knowledge banks, creation of online forums in order that R&D institutes get in touch with the innovation produced in other R&D institutes, and clustering efforts amongst them.	
All the results from R&D institutes need to be presented practically.	
The knowledge that is generated from R&D institutes has to be stored in a central repository, and to be accessible from other actors in the value chain.	
5. Execute the knowledge transfer: Transfer the knowledge.	
Knowledge receivers: PubA/Gov Knowledge providers: R&D Best Practices EDEA, ENEA	

Provide knowledge

In order to drive the knowledge providers to effectively transfer



transfer tools that are easily available and easy to employ.	their technology, guidelines addressed to them must be developed. These guidelines will act as a tool to disseminate and to make available to the rest of the academic and research community the outcomes of the research. The guidelines will be designed to be implemented in different type of activities such as: videos, podcasts, Forums, Webinars.
 Ensure that all agents are skilled enough to be able to use the knowledge transfer tool effectively. 	All agents involved in this need should have the same background and the same skills; however it must be considered that R&D institutes are growing in multi-disciplinary approaches.
 Promote the knowledge transfer mechanism. 	Through the ee-WiSE Knowledge Transfer Framework.

B3. Clustering within the retrofit market to provide integrated solutions.

Knowledge receivers: Occupant/Installer/Gov/PubA/Build Manage/RenewEn/EDist Knowledge providers: TechSol/R&D/Manufacturer/

Type of knowledge: Cooperation for integrated solutions Solutions (D3.1)

- Create regional networking of companies working in retrofitting innovation.

4. Knowledge transfer methods: Determine how the knowledge will be transferred

What is the best method for the knowledge transfer considering the knowledge being dealt with?	One of the best methods could be forums, Webinars; Videos where experts from industry will discuss (explain) new products, installation procedures to craftsmen, Exhibition where the products can be displayed, and training courses.
 Does the information need to be demonstrated practically? 	This Specific need is the most crucial and has to be practical demonstrated in order to achieve the maximum knowledge transfer between Value chain actors and groups.
 Can the knowledge be stored for future reference in a central repository accessible to all the receiving value chain groups? 	Yes the knowledge generation from Clustering can be stored centrally in order to identify the networking paths. The integrated solutions also have to be stored in a central repository system and to be available to all value chain groups.
5. Execute the knowledge t	ransfer: Transfer the knowledge.
 Invite the relevant knowledge providers and receivers to become actively engaged in the 	Knowledge receivers: Occupant/Installer/ Gov/PubA/ Build Manage/ RenewEn/ EDist Knowledge providers: TechSol/R&D/Manufacturer



knowledge transfer process	Best practice: Case study : AID system for Thermal Refurbishment of Social Housing Stock in Champagne Ardennes Region; Case Study: Arte Genova Pilot Via Sertoli,9- Shelter Project
 Provide knowledge transfer tools that are easily available and easy to employ. 	In order to drive the knowledge providers to effectively transfer their technology, guidelines addressed to them must be developed.
	The guidelines will be designed to be implemented in different type of activities such as: videos podcasts forums and training material regarding the use of the proposed solution
	Case study: AID system for Thermal Refurbishment of Social Housing Stock in Champagne Ardennes Region- Identifications of needs; Implementation of the partnership, Support to project managers, Financial Engineering, Funding and monitoring of project.
	Case Study: Arte Genova Pilot Via Sertoli,9- Shelter Project: maintain the thermal comfort conditions inside the units; reduce heat loss; assess, the energy efficiency of each dwelling.
 Ensure that all agents are skilled enough to be able to use the knowledge transfer tool effectively. 	For each value chain group a different learning curriculum has to be implemented based on the agents Skills.
 Promote the knowledge transfer mechanism. 	Through the ee-WiSE Knowledge Transfer Framework.

3.5. Knowledge Transfer to exploit R&D findings (Task 4.5)

A1. Training of traditional craftsmen on EE retrofitting innovations.

Knowledge receivers: Installers, A&E.

Knowledge providers: R&D, Manufacturers, Tech. Sol, A&E, Renew. En, Software.

Type of knowledge:

Solutions (D3.1)

- Expose the traditional craftsmen to demonstration projects.
- tools for the home-owner and traditional craftsmen for the decision making

4. Knowledge transfer methods: Determine how the knowledge will be transferred

 What is the best method for the knowledge transfer considering the knowledge being dealt with? The best method must be a practical activity where traditional craftsmen can experience in person the whole process of the innovative technology, from the installation to the final use and benefits. Experimental buildings are the perfect living lab where this activity can take place. The resources and materials that experimental building projects provide to disseminate results will


suppose also tools to implement this KT.

 Does the information need to be demonstrated practically? 	Yes. The dissemination of innovative technologies through experimental building projects will reach craftsmen properly.
 Can the knowledge be stored for future reference in a central repository accessible to all the receiving value chain groups? 	Yes. The agents that develop EE technologies (R&D, Manufacturers, Tech. Sol, A&E, RenewEn, and Software.) should provide an easy-understanding content of the technology, not only for the traditional craftsmen level, but also for the end users.
5. Execute the knowledge t	ransfer: Transfer the knowledge.
 Invite the relevant knowledge providers and receivers to become actively engaged in the knowledge transfer process 	Agents involved are: - Receivers: Installers. - Providers: R&D, Manufacturers, Tech. Sol, Software.
 Provide knowledge transfer tools that are easily available and easy to employ. 	 The tools will have the following features: Will be related to Experimental Building Projects, thus the exploitation of their buildings and tools to disseminate results is necessary. Will be linked to training programmes for traditional craftsmen. Will be accessible to knowledge providers who are, not associated to the projects, in order to provide an easy tool to expose their technology. In order to drive the knowledge providers to effectively transfer their technology, guidelines addressed to them must be developed. The craftsmen also need to be provided with guidelines to inform to the end user about the features of the technology learned to avoid transferring incorrect information.
 Ensure that all agents are skilled enough to be able to use the knowledge transfer tool effectively. 	 Very specific technical language must be avoided in the dissemination to craftsmen. Providers and receivers will be able to validate the tool after its use.
 Promote the knowledge transfer mechanism. 	Through the ee-WiSE Knowledge Transfer Framework.



C4. When commun	icating research re	esults, more foc	us needs to b	be given to	practical be	nefits of the
		retrofit tech	nology.			

Knowledge receivers: Occupants, Build. Manage, Installers, A&E.

Knowledge providers: Pub. A., R&D, Tech. Sol, ESCO, Manufacturer, Renew. En, A&E.

Type of knowledge: Scientific (focusing on practical benefits)

Solutions (D3.1)

- Readily available information from product and technology data sheets.
- Knowledge sharing events (encouraged by admin) where the owners and supporting agents of the new retrofit technologies will have the opportunity to present the results of the new technology advances to the rest of the value chain.
- 4. Knowledge transfer methods: Determine how the knowledge will be transferred

	- The best method is translating the information sheet provided with the technology to an additional version addressed to end users in terms of economical savings and comfort.	
 What is the best method for the knowledge transfer considering the knowledge being dealt with? 	- Sharing events can be considered the best way Public Administrations can carry out the transfer of research results (especially when these come from public funding), involving active participation of owners experimenting EE technologies (especially the ones who benefited from a subsidy).	
	- Additionally, experimental buildings can be the arena of interpretation centres for society, were occupants will be able to visit and experience themselves the technologies installed.	
 Does the information need to be demonstrated practically? 	Yes. Practical benefits will be collected from real life testing. For this aim, experimental buildings and owners experience will provide the source.	
 Can the knowledge be stored for future reference in a central repository accessible to all the receiving value chain groups? 	Yes, as practical benefits' sheets.	
5. Execute the knowledge transfer: Transfer the knowledge.		
 Invite the relevant knowledge providers and receivers to become actively engaged in the knowledge transfer process 	Agents involved are: For the product information sheet method: - Receivers: Occupants, Build. Manage, Installers, A&E. - Providers: R&D, Tech. Sol, Manufacturer, Renew. En, ESCO. For the sharing event method:	



	 Receivers: Occupants, Build. Manage, Installers, A&E. Providers: R&D, Tech. Sol, ESCO, Manufacturer, Renew.
	En, Occupants, Build. Manage, Installers, A&E. The Public Administration will act as a driver to assist on the sharing event definition.
	 The tools will have the following features: Will be related to Experimental Building Projects, so that the retrofit technologies providers will obtain the practical benefit input from the building testing and expose it.
transfer tools that are easily available and easy to employ.	 Will establish as an essential duty after a technology is installed, to gather owners' impressions to present them in terms of economic savings and comfort.
	 ESCOs can conduct the exposition of owners' impressions on their own while another option is a dual team presentation of owner and the solution provider.
 Ensure that all agents are skilled enough to be able to use the knowledge transfer tool effectively. 	 Very specific technical language must be avoided when translating experiences from experimental buildings. For the sharing event, the owners that can clearly manifest the benefits of the technology will be identified.
 Promote the knowledge transfer mechanism. 	Through the ee-WiSE Knowledge Transfer Framework.

C2. Real-life evaluation of research results.

Knowledge receivers: R&D, Tech. Sol, Manufacturer, Certificate, LCA, Pub. Ad., Occupants, Build. Manage, Installers, A&E.

Knowledge providers: R&D, Tech. Sol, Manufacturer, Certificate, LCA, Pub. Ad., Finance, PO.

Type of knowledge: Scientific

Solutions (D3.1)

- Exposing the advances of the research activity to the end users through a stock of buildings that can be used for real-life testing.
- 4. Knowledge transfer methods: Determine how the knowledge will be transferred
- What is the best method for the knowledge transfer considering the knowledge being dealt with?
 By means of the Public Administration, EE technologies can be implemented in real life scenarios, so that the scientific knowledge travels back to the knowledge provides.



 Does the information need to be demonstrated practically? 	Yes. A real-life testing directs to a practical activity.	
 Can the knowledge be stored for future reference in a central repository accessible to all the receiving value chain groups? 	 Yes. There will be 2 types of knowledge for 2 types of agents: Knowledge and Products providers: will be looking for the real-life result of their product. Occupants: will be looking for the balance results of the benefits acquired in their houses. 	
5. Execute the knowledge th	anster: Transter the knowledge.	
 Invite the relevant knowledge providers and receivers to become actively engaged in the knowledge transfer process 	 Agents involved are: Receivers: R&D, Tech. Sol, Manufacturer, Certificate, LCA, Pub. Ad., Occupants, Build. Manage, Installers, A&E. Providers: R&D, Tech. Sol, Manufacturer, Certificate, LCA, Pub. Ad., Finance, PO. The Public Administration together with Financial entities will act as a driver to assist with additional real-life cases. 	
 Provide knowledge transfer tools that are easily available and easy to employ. 	 The tools will have the following features: Provide real life cases: Real-life experimental buildings: from experimental building projects. Public buildings: that belongs to the Public Administration. Residential buildings: from owners that have been encouraged through subsidies and reduced rates. Will compare the scientific feedback obtained with the owners' impressions and present them to the scientific community and society. 	
 Ensure that all agents are skilled enough to be able to use the knowledge transfer tool effectively. 	- Clear information should be given to the end user to persuade them to take part of the scientific evaluation experience.	
 Promote the knowledge transfer mechanism. 	Through the ee-WiSE Knowledge Transfer Framework.	



C1. Scientists need to have increased contact with the end-users in order to understand the applicability of their research.

Knowledge receivers: R&D, Tech. Sol.

Knowledge providers: Installer, Manufacturer, Pub. A, Occupants.

Type of knowledge: Communication skills

Solutions (D3.1)

- Training of scientists to improve their communication skills and ensure the recognition of communication efforts.

	4. Knowledge transfer method	ods: Determine how the knowledge will be transferred		
•	What is the best method for the knowledge transfer considering the knowledge being dealt with?	Training of scientists to improve their communication skills is the best method to overcome this need. Training will suppose some assistance like guidelines and sheets or short questionnaires to gather feedback from end users.		
-	Does the information need to be demonstrated practically?	A practical experience, like a sharing event, will foster the communication between them. However it is not necessary to have a practical demonstration of communication experiences between R&D and end users.		
•	Can the knowledge be stored for future reference in a central repository accessible to all the receiving value chain groups?	Yes. The occupants' real experiences will be very constructive for the scientific community, and thus a public knowledge base will promote EE technologies based on real-life feedback.		
	5. Execute the knowledge transfer: Transfer the knowledge.			
•	Invite the relevant knowledge providers and receivers to become actively engaged in the knowledge transfer process	Agents involved are: - Receivers: R&D, Tech. Sol. - Providers: Installer, Manufacturer, Pub. A, Occupants.		
•	Provide knowledge transfer tools that are easily available and easy to employ.	Easy available tools such as the platforms of experimental building projects should be considered as most of these are intended to interact with users, installers, manufacturers and public administrations, and they would be able to observe how the solution works in a friendly way.		
-	Ensure that all agents are skilled enough to be able to use the knowledge transfer tool effectively.	Ensure clear input from the end user to the R&D and the opposite when communicating about EE solutions.		
•	Promote the knowledge transfer mechanism.	Through the ee-WiSE Knowledge Transfer Framework.		



3.6. Additional tools

3.6.1. Communication Plan for Society [Task 4.2]

The Communication Plan is to be used by public administration and similar entities that wish to communicate the benefits and solutions of EE retrofitting to the society.

Following the identified needs of the society, the objectives of the Communication Plan are three-fold:

- 1. Expose the end-users to the (latest) technological results,
- 2. Make sure that technical commercial advice disseminated to the end-users follows the Energy Performance of Buildings Directive (EPBD), and
- 3. Carry out Dissemination actions by following specific EC guidelines.

Based on the best practices and solutions, the following tools/actions are expected to produce the best possible outcomes:

- clearly define end-user/target groups
- transfer knowledge at cluster level (target groups)
- employ specific end-user mobilisation events and training / education actions,
- involve professional knowledge brokers,
- use, where possible, model (demo) solutions,
- follow / support face to face events and training actions with web and social media (newsletters, articles, blogs).

Ideally an EE Communication Plan should employ the following actions:

- End-User mobilisation Events and Training & Education Actions,
- Web-Portal, Social Media support actions, and
- Cluster / Regional EE Projects demonstrating Innovative Retro-Fit Actions.

1. End-User mobilisation Events and Training & Education Actions

Actions here will include info-days and workshops informing building occupants and owners about the latest technological solutions and trends in the EE retro-fitting market. These events will provide necessary information, but will also serve as the starting point for further actions mobilising users to take action and implement EE retro-fit solutions.

The mobilisation events and education actions should be organised with a help of professional knowledge brokers. They can be incorporated in local/ regional events, e.g. energy/ construction exhibitions, etc.

2. Web-Portal, Social Media support actions

The above face to face events should be supported with background material in a user-friendly and easily understandable format, as well as online discussion forums through an appropriate Web-Portal and popular Social Media.



3. Cluster / Regional EE Projects demonstrating Innovative Retrofit Actions

Real action, though will greatly be facilitated, through regional projects bringing different actors together (eg. regional R&D organisations, certification bodies, public authorities, financial organisations, energy providers, EE retro-fitting professionals and technology solution providers and end-users) to design, finance and implement, model EE retro-fit solutions in specific regions under the supervision and political / technical support of local authorities.

Such projects can be designed and implemented based on viable business models where the investment necessary is set against the future economic as well as environmental benefits. Especially now when the European Economies are in recession, such projects can help in reviving the otherwise dead construction industry in many European countries, increasing employment and economic activity.

Where regional EE retrofitting demonstration projects have already been implemented, their results should be disseminated and used in the previously described end-user mobilisation events, as real-life examples of the benefits of EE retrofitting.

4. ICT TRAINING TOOLS FOR LEARNING AND KNOWLEDGE SHARING

Bearing in mind the above analysis based on the previous Work packages of the ee-Wise project and the work that needs to be carried out throughout the forth-coming work packages, the following pages attempt to provide a parameter to the scope of the project that will assist the consortium on obtaining a clear view of the environment for the further development of the work.

The Knowledge Transfer based on training tools approach analyzed on the following pages, aims to become a valuable guide and be considered as a good practice to any organization or agent that intends to develop training material engaging, interesting and attractive for a specific target group according to their needs and expectations, while at the same time valorizing the new information and communication technologies (ICT) available on the world wide web to be used for education and informational activities.

In addition, an approach is made towards the key competencies – knowledge, skills and attitudes- that are necessary for personal fulfilment, development, social inclusion, active citizenship and employment, so as to assist the selection of the proper mechanisms and thus incorporating them into the final output of the project.

Furthermore, having looked upon the environment, the target group, and the needs analysis undertaken from the members of the consortium, the partnership must proceed to the selection of tools and methods that will achieve the ICT tools and the innovative new methods. A view on the advantages, disadvantages, as well as the needs and opinions of the potential learners is made to meet the above mentioned necessity. For this reason, this section concludes with an indicative and not exhaustive presentation of a list of ICT tools that are innovative, effective, awarded and widely accepted in order to assist the development of a learning process around new ICT means so as to promote effective knowledge transfer. Extensive information of the following material can be found in the Annex of deliverable 4.1.

4.1. Methodological background for ICT training tools

- Training Material for the KT needs will be used.
- Training Modules will be designed to be used based on the needs of the target group.
- Profiles and Target groups will be defined
- What aspects of matrix they are addressing will be determined.

The training approach should describe the overall educational framework in which the training process is developed, also to meet the needs of the selected target group as those have been derived through the online survey which is conducted by the partnership (Info deriving from the Questionnaire Analysis).

Since the training tools will be based on the use of the new ICT technologies, this implies the use of interactive learning. Interactive learning means interaction with the resources, readings and information for most of the respondents of the online survey. Also for the respondents another important aspect of the learning process should be the interaction with the tutor / instructor / trainer / facilitator.

Also, the following assumptions should be included when designing training tools focused on the specific target group:



- ✓ Knowledge transfer (transforming knowledge into experiential knowledge) is most effective by small-group consultations and simulation
- ✓ In the course of assessing knowledge significant need appears for immediate feedback, this can be achieved by using online interactive tools and tests
- ✓ Serious consideration should be given to the use of video material in the learning process, since it is considered an extremely appealing tools when describing technical issues

Another parameter that the training tools should take into consideration is the *learning characteristics* of the adult *learners*. Adults:

- ✓ Prefer to acquire knowledge through experience (Hands-on-job Training, Learning by doing)
- ✓ Prefer to learn with e-tools that offer high level of interactivity
- ✓ Prefer the whole experience should be as user friendly as possible and additionally to attract them, having in mind the demanding working schedule.

A specified framework must be designed in order to assist in achieving the learning goals set that also takes into consideration the adult learning characteristics described above. To do so, certain aspects of training theory must be taken into account, such as carefully designed training activities the learners will perform, selection of teaching models to be used as guidelines for the learning process, what resources will be available to the participants of the learning experience, etc. A most known and widely used framework is the one suggested by Robert Gagne, which categorizes the whole approach in 3 main categories: Analysis, Design and finally Evaluation [Figure 5].



Figure 5: Robert Gagne's Instructional Design Model

Aiming to improve the engagement of learners which is the goal during the learning process, it is important to devote time, effort and thought to shape the environment and plan each class session/learning module taking into account the learning factor, information technology, personnel, general philosophy, educational schedule, etc with view to enhance the active participation of the learners whether in a classroom or through ICT tools.



4.1.1. Description of the Target group features

In order to properly define the learning goals of the training material, the special features of this target group have to be firstly identified. These features function as basic guidelines on how the learning objectives should be structured and thus developed accordingly. The features of the target group could be:

Cognitive features

In terms of cognitive features (knowledge) the adult learners have the following characteristics:

- ✓ Most likely they have basic knowledge of ICT literacy (how to turn on a PC, and navigate in the operating system and system folders)
- ✓ Their knowledge around sophisticated issues may vary
- The way they prefer to learn, varies
- ✓ The learners may have some knowledge of educational and social circumstances of the region they live in (due to their career choices)

Psychosocial features

Psychosocial features describe the socio-economical situation of a person as well as his / her beliefs, and the way of thinking. The adult learners have the following characteristics:

- ✓ The learners take part into a non-formal form of education
- ✓ The learners are precarious workers / part time workers / unemployed / entrepreneurs
- ✓ Their views about e-learning and technology in general, vary
- ✓ They are interested about cultural issues of the country they live in, as well as cultural issues and customs of other countries

Demographic features

When it comes to the demographics features analysis, the features that must be described are the mother language of the learner, her / his ethnic background, etc. In these terms the adult learners have the following characteristics:

✓ The way they prefer to learn, varies

Another parameter that needs to be include at the design phase of the training tools are the Key Competences and the learning objectives of each tool/ module.

4.1.2. Key Competences and learning objectives

Key competencies are not to be considered only for the young people, but for all ages and should be considered as well after the compulsory education and training, equipping them for working life, whilst forming a basis for further learning. Adults ought throughout their lives to indulge into a process of developing and updating their skills not only for business matters, but for their interpersonal development (lifelong learning). The training tools should be formed in such a way that the learners by the end of the learning process will have acquired those key competences that are needed in the labor market, in a way that is extremely appealing and interesting for them.



Key Competences

The acquisition of key competences fits in with the principles of equality and access for all. The EU reference framework also applies in particular to disadvantaged groups whose educational potential requires support. Examples of such groups include people with low basic skills, early school leavers, the long-term unemployed, people with disabilities, immigrants, elderly people, women who have left the professional field and re-enter after a long period, etc.



Figure 6: The 8 Key Competences

These key competences are all interdependent, and the emphasis in each case is on critical thinking, creativity, initiative, problem solving, risk assessment, decision taking and constructive management of feelings. These key competences provide a reference framework to support National and European efforts to achieve the objectives they define. This framework is mainly intended for policy makers, education and training providers, employers and learners. The status of the above stated Key Competencies is not obligatory, but rather is to be used as a reference by all EU Member States and their education and training organizations and actors in their effort to:

- ✓ Provide a basis for future learning: initial education and training offer all young people the means to develop the key competences to a level that equips them for adult and working life
- ✓ Offer the appropriate provision to young disadvantaged people in their training so that they can fulfil their educational potential
- ✓ Possibility to adults to develop and update their key competences throughout their lives, particularly priority target groups

- ✓ Provide the necessary infrastructure for continuing education and training of adults
- ✓ Ensure access to education and training and the labor market though suitable measures and that there is support for learners depending on their specific needs and competences
- ✓ Achieve coherence of adult education and training provision through close links between the policies concerned.

Learning Objectives Classification

As in every training exercise, in the proposed one as well, the results should be quantifiable, so to examine whether or not they have been achieved and consequently the necessary improvement actions to be undertaken. The most common and easy way is the segmentation of the whole course in learning objectives, which are located in three basic domains. Those three domains are: the cognitive, the affective and the psycho motor domain. The goals are described below, which the learners must achieve in those thematic sectors by the end of the training approach.

- 1. Learning objectives aimed at the Cognitive domain: In this segment the learning goals should be described in terms of mental skills (Knowledge).
- 2. Learning objectives aimed at the Affective domain: In this segment the learning goals should be described in relation to feelings or emotional areas (Attitude).
- 3. Learning objectives aimed at the Psychomotor domain: Lastly, in this segment the learning goals have to be described in terms of manual or physical skills (Skills).

4.2. Analysis of ICT tools with collaboration activities

- For each of the training tools what collaboration can exist
- If they do not allow collaboration why not and if they can be extended, how

4.2.1. ICT-based tools and methods used widely in learning approaches

This section approaches the various Information and Communication Technologies used in the learning process with different ways, but always to achieve the same goal. Each table describes and presents each one of the means, how it is used, presents the advantages and disadvantages and finally its correlation to the Key Competencies as they were recognised at EU level.

"Video in learning courses"

Title:	"Video in ICT learning courses"	
Description		
Video can be used as a great compliment to almost all of ICT based learning courses. Some		
of the ways that video can be used in the courses are:		
· Narration		
 Vignet 	tes of experts providing advice/tips as it relates to the course's content	
· Showii	ng role-plays	
• Simula	tions, etc.	



Advantages (+)	Disadvantages (-)		
· Interesting	• Technical issues (different formats,		
 Direct approach 	size, etc)		
· Engaging	Passive interaction		
 Asynchronous e-learning 	Requires stable internet connection		
 More concentrated knowledge 	· Requires extra time to be prepared		
 Requires low familiarity with ICT 	· Requires extra time to set the		
· Can offer simulation of real life	learning material and content		
experiences			
Competencies acquired			
· Communication in the mother tongue			
Communication in foreign languages			
Digital Competence			
 Learning to Learn 			
Cultural awareness and expression			
Required skills to develop video learning	Required knowledge to develop video		
courses	learning courses		
 communication skills to discuss the 	 technological background and 		
necessary processes, understand	competencies, so as to efficiently		
and tollow instructions	select proper materials, tools and		
· learning skills to	equipment commonly used for video		
video art through practice and	knowledge of learning material and		
respond appropriately to	methods that shall be combined for		
requirements	the proper result		
planning and organizing skills to	major styles of video art and the		
prepare and set up resources and	work of key practitioners relevant to		
work space	individual area		
 self-management skills to set own skill 	 intellectual property considerations 		
development goals	for any person making creative work		
	 ways of minimizing waste in the use 		
	of video art technologies		
Required skills and competences to attend video learning courses			
Familiarity with the tools and technology required			
Ability to adjust to innovations			
Efficient physical ability of seeing and hearing			
Best Practices			
Videos related to energy efficient retrofitting			
http://www.youtube.com/watch2v=GMW/51.rg	٩٧m٨٨		
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3bR9Derxxog			
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=96WarcK2OmM			
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=EMdZr-TAga0			
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=bubzyD0tuol			
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=XNCMwhYKdtM			
http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Hkg-8H17s	sck		



"Simulation"

Title:	"Simulation"			
Description				
A simulation in be produced i an immersive people with di	the learning process is a reproc in all fields through computer go learning experience, is suitable fferent cultural backgrounds.	duction of an event / situation. Simulations can ames, role-plays, or building models. Provides for people with disabilities is suitable for all		
	Advantages (+)	Disadvantages (-)		
· Cost e	ffective			
· Friend	ly to trainer and trainee	 No social interaction (person to 		
· Offers	s real life experiences	computer, instead of person to		
• Fun	·	person)		
· Traine	e works at his/hers own pace			
· No pro	ogramming skills required			
(plenty	y of available software)			
· Self-te	eaching through self-discovery			
 Easy s 	oft skills training			
· Appeo	aling			
· Can b	 Can be used for people with 			
disabi	lities			
Competencies	acquired			
· Comm	unication in the mother tongue			
· Comm	nmunication in foreign languages			
· Cultur	ing to Learn			
Social	and civic competences			
· Sense	of initiative and entrepreneurshi	n		
Required ski	ills to develop simulation	Required knowledge to develop		
learning cours	Ses	simulation learning courses		
 commu unders proces learnir improv proces appro work planni prepa self-my skill de 	unication skills to efficiently stand and reproduce required sses ing skills to continuously we techniques for simulation sses and respond upriately to feedback on own ing and organizing skills to are and set up resources and space anagement skills to set own evelopment goals	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined for the proper result typical work space and equipment requirements for the production of courses intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work 		
Required skill	s and competences to attend sir	nulation learning courses		



•	Familiarity	with the	tools a	ind techno	ology	required
---	-------------	----------	---------	------------	-------	----------

· Ability to adjust to innovations

Best Practices

OpenSimulator.org

OpenWonderland.org

Edusim3d.com

OpenCobalt.org

Simulation related to energy efficient retrofitting

http://appsl.eere.energy.gov/buildings/energyplus/

"Audio in learning"

Title:	"Audio in learning"			
Description				
Audio in learn	ing can be used in various for	ms (audio books, audio snippets, etc) and it		
makes it easy	for example to take multiple	books with wherever you go. Audio learning		
allows you to f	inally "read" all material wanted	d but never had the time for.		
	Advantages (+)	Disadvantages (-)		
· Less ex	xpensive	 Poor & passive interaction skills 		
 Higher 	assimilation	· Lack of self-assessment of the		
· Improv	vement of listening, speaking &	learning process, with the exception		
compr	ehension skills	of language learning		
 Increase 	sed interest	Low or no collaboration		
· Mobili	ty	 Requires high degree of discipline 		
· Conve	nience			
 Increase 	sed spatial intelligence			
 Easily 	accessible			
Competencies	acquired			
· Comm	unication in the mother tongue			
· Comm	Communication in foreign languages			
· Digital Competence				
• Learni	ng to Learn			
· Social	and civic competences			
· Culture	al awareness and expression			
Required skil	ls to develop audio-based	Required knowledge to develop audio-		
learning cours	es	based learning courses		
• great	level of oral communication	 technological background and 		
skills		competencies, so as to efficiently		
 learnir 	ng skills to continuously	select proper tools and utilize all		
improv	ve techniques and utilize	available features		
prope	r respond appropriately to	 deep knowledge of learning 		
feedb	ack on own work	material and methods that shall be		
• planni	ng and organizing skills to	combined for the proper result		
prepa	re and set up resources and	 typical work space and equipment 		



work space	requirements for the production of		
 self-management skills to set own 	courses		
skill development goals	 intellectual property considerations 		
	for any person making creative work		
Required skills and competences to attend audio-based learning courses			
Efficient physical ability of hearing			
Familiarity with the tools and technology required			
Best Practices			
Audacity.net			
Power Sound Editor			

<u>"Podcasts" (audio lectures)</u>

Title:	"Podcasts" - (audio lectures)	
Description		
Same as the p	revious section.	
	Advantages (+)	Disadvantages (-)
• Portal	oility – mobility	Passive interaction skills
· Conve	nience	 No image provision
• Async	nronous learning	· Requires extra time to be properly
· No ex	tensive technical knowledge	produced
• Alway	s available	
· More	attractive than reading	
 Suitab 	le for visually challenged	
peopl	e	
Competencies	acquired	
· Comm	unication in the mother tongue	
· Comm	unication in foreign languages	
· Digita	· Digital Competence	
• Learni	· Learning to Learn	
• Social	and civic competences	
· Cultur	al awareness and expression	
Required skills to develop podcasts		Required knowledge to develop podcasts
· great	level of oral communication	 technological background and
skills		competencies, so as to efficiently
· learni	ng skills to continuously	select proper tools and utilize all
impro	ve techniques and utilize	available features
prope	r respond appropriately to	deep knowledge of learning
feedb	ack on own work	material and methods that shall be
• planni	ng and organizing skills to	combined for the proper result
prepa	re and set up resources and	· Typical work space and equipment
, solf m	anagement skills to set own	courses
- 3CII-III	unugement skills to set own	



skill development goals	 intellectual property considerations 		
	for any person making creative work		
Required skills and competences to attend podcasts			
Efficient physical ability of hearing			
Familiarity with the tools and technology required			
Best Practices			
Juice Receiver			
Podcast Generator			
Podcasts related to energy efficient retrofitting			
https://itunes.apple.com/cy/podcast/hph039	-planning-phased-		
retrofit/id548674350?i=224483719&mt=2			
https://itunes.apple.com/cy/podcast/u.kgreen-investment-			
bank/id351439388?i=131112192&mt=2			
https://itunes.apple.com/cy/podcast/new-business-			
opportunities/id274303095?i=229740856&mt=2			
https://itunes.apple.com/cy/podcast/link-between-dsm-wind-			
energy/id274303095?i=62213156&mt=2			

"e-learning courses" (synchronous, asynchronous)

"e-learning courses" - (synchronous, asynchronous)

Description

Title:

e-learning described in a short phrase is a continuum of learning processes and practices enhanced by Information and Communication Technologies (ICT), in order to improve the quality of learning".

Synchronous Learning

In the Synchronous Learning the trainee participates in real time learning via an intranet or the Internet.

Asynchronous Learning

In Asynchronous training the trainer can prepare the educational materials and store it to an electronic medium (LCMS/LMS), while afterwards the learner can take the learning material anywhere and at any time he / she chooses to.

Blended Learning

Finally, the term Blended learning describes the learning model of learning which implements both asynchronous communication technologies and conventional education structures. In this model of learning, learners usually begin the education process at conventional educational structures and then access content and communicate with the trainer using Internet technologies.

Advantages (+)	Disadvantages (-)
Asynchronous learning	· Self-discipline
· Convenience	Basic ICT literacy
· Cost effective	 Internet access and equipment
 Increased availability of educational 	 Not suitable for all science subjects
opportunities	(e.g. nursing clinicals)
No commuting	 Social isolation
 Self-paced knowledge 	



•	Personalized education material	
•	Synchronized and updated	
	information	
•	Increased collaboration between	
	instructor and learners	
·	Less intimidating – risk free	
	environment	
·	Learn while working	
•	Ongoing access to resources	
•	Increased retention	
•	Easily managed	
Compe	tencies acquired	
	Communication in the mother tongue	
•	Communication in foreign languages	
•	· Mathematical competence and basic competences in science and technology	
·	Digital Competence	
•	· Learning to Learn	
Requir	ed skills to develop asynchronous	Required knowledge to develop
loarnin		acynahianaus loaining agursos
icuiiii		asynchronous learning courses
	communication skills to efficiently	technological background and
·	communication skills to efficiently reproduce educative processes	technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently solast proper tools and utilize all
	communication skills to efficiently reproduce educative processes through technological means	technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools and utilize all available features
	communication skills to efficiently reproduce educative processes through technological means learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine	technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools and utilize all available features
	communication skills to efficiently reproduce educative processes through technological means learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be
	communication skills to efficiently reproduce educative processes through technological means learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined for the proper result
	communication skills to efficiently reproduce educative processes through technological means learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined for the proper result typical work space and equipment
	communication skills to efficiently reproduce educative processes through technological means learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined for the proper result typical work space and equipment requirements for the production of
	communication skills to efficiently reproduce educative processes through technological means learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined for the proper result typical work space and equipment requirements for the production of courses
	communication skills to efficiently reproduce educative processes through technological means learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined for the proper result typical work space and equipment requirements for the production of courses intellectual property considerations
	communication skills to efficiently reproduce educative processes through technological means learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own skill development goals	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined for the proper result typical work space and equipment requirements for the production of courses intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work
	communication skills to efficiently reproduce educative processes through technological means learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own skill development goals	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined for the proper result typical work space and equipment requirements for the production of courses intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work
	communication skills to efficiently reproduce educative processes through technological means learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own skill development goals	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined for the proper result typical work space and equipment requirements for the production of courses intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work
	communication skills to efficiently reproduce educative processes through technological means learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own skill development goals ed skills and competences to attend as Efficient web access through internet o	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined for the proper result typical work space and equipment requirements for the production of courses intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work
	communication skills to efficiently reproduce educative processes through technological means learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own skill development goals ed skills and competences to attend as Efficient web access through internet o Familiarity with the tools and technolog	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined for the proper result typical work space and equipment requirements for the production of courses intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work
Require Best Pr	communication skills to efficiently reproduce educative processes through technological means learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own skill development goals ed skills and competences to attend as Efficient web access through internet o Familiarity with the tools and technolog actices	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined for the proper result typical work space and equipment requirements for the production of courses intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work



Mobile learning (mlearning)

Title:	"Mobile learning" (mlearning)	
Description		
The term mLe including but n phones. mlean technologies, a accommodate	earning, or "mobile learning" ot limited to handheld computer ming focuses on the mobility and learning that reflects a f and support an increasingly mob	covers: learning with portable technologies s, MP3 players, notebooks, tablets and mobile of the learner, interacting with portable ocus on how society and its institutions can pile population.
	Advantages (+)	Disadvantages (-)
 Portal Immed No cor Conve Suppo necess Easy c Interac Synchr inform Engag Quick Addict New tr resourt 	ble – mobility liate application of knowledge mmuting nience rt of rich media (when ary) access to expertise ction ronized and updated ation ing access to resources rive rend with increased human ces to its development	 Fragmented learning experience – distractions Lack of self-assessment of the learning process (at this point) Usability (small screens, access to internet connection) Expensive equipment (smartphones, tablets, goggles, etc) Protection and security issues (personal data) High ICT literacy – adaptability Increased cost & effort for proper educational material
Competencies	acquired	1
· Digita	Competence	
· Learni	ng to Learn	
Required skills	s to use mobile learning	Required knowledge to use mobile learning
 communication communication learning learning improvious planning prepation work signalized self-magication 	unication skills to efficiently duce educative processes h mobile technologies ng skills to continuously we techniques and combine appropriately ng and organizing skills to re and set up resources and pace so as to achieve proper in good time anagement skills to set own evelopment goals	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined for the proper result typical work space and equipment requirements for the production of courses intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work
Required skills	s and competences to attend m	obile learning
Efficie	nt web access through internet o	r intranet

· Familiarity with the tools and technology required



Best Practices

mole-project

"Educational Games"

Title:	"Educational Games"		
Description			
Educational games are games that have been designed and created to teach people about a certain subject, expand concepts, reinforce development, understand a historical event or culture, or assist them in learning a skill (competence) as they play.			
Advantages (+) Disadvantages (-)			
Engaging to all ages Social isolation			
Promote teamwork & cooperative		· Addictive	
creati	ve endeavor	Poor social interaction skills	
 Practice problem-solving skills, creative thinking & cognitive processing Encourage cooperative & competitive behavior 		 Retain learning in favor of finishing the game Expensive to produce 	
• Increa	se short and long-term memory		
• Relax	ing		
· Prepa	ration for the real world (too		
exper	sive to reproduce in classroom)		
 Knowl 	edge remains		
Competencies	acquired		
 Communication in the mother tongue Communication in foreign languages Mathematical competence and basic competences in science and technology Digital Competence Learning to Learn Cultural awareness and expression 			
Required skills to develop Educational Games		Required knowledge to develop Educational Games	
 good imagin reprod throug learnin improd them d planni prepa work s 	level of creativity and nation, in order to efficiently duce educative processes of gaming technologies ng skills to continuously we techniques and combine appropriately ng and organizing skills to are and set up resources and space so as to achieve proper	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined with gaming techniques for the proper result typical work space and equipment requirements for the production of courses 	



self-management skills to set own
skill development goals

intellectual	property considerations
for any pe	son making creative wor

•

- · Familiarity with the tools and technology required
- Adjustment to innovations

Best Practices

.

Scratch

Educational Games related to energy efficient retrofitting

http://www.ngridenergyworld.com/eew/

"Augmented Reality applications & software, Virtual Reality worlds"

Title:	"Augmented Reality applications & software", "Virtual Reality worlds"		
Description	Description		
Augmented Reality (AR) is a term for a live direct or indirect view of a physical, real-world environment whose elements are augmented by computer-generated sensory input such as sound, video, graphics or GPS data. It is related to a more general concept called mediated reality, in which a view of reality is modified (possibly even diminished rather than augmented) by a computer. The technology functions by enhancing one's current perception of reality.			
Virtual reality (VR) is a term that applies to computer-simulated environments that can simulate physical presence in places in the real world, as well as in imaginary worlds. Most current virtual reality environments are primarily visual experiences, displayed either on a computer screen or through special stereoscopic displays, but some simulations include additional sensory information, such as sound through speakers or headphones.			
	Advantages (+)	Disadvantages (-)	
Engag Addict Practic creativ proces Knowl Increa Prepa expen Highly	ing to all ages tive ce problem-solving skills, ve thinking & cognitive ssing edge remains se short and long-term memory ration for the real world (too sive to reproduce in classroom) r interesting environment acquired	 Increased cost & effort for proper educational material Digital literacy Expensive equipment 	
Competencies acquired			
 Comm Comm Digita Learni Social Culture 	unication in the mother tongue unication in foreign languages I Competence ng to Learn and civic competences al awareness and expression		



Required skills to develop Augmented Reality applications & software, Virtual Reality worlds	Required knowledge to develop Augmented Reality applications & software, Virtual Reality worlds	
 good level of creativity and imagination, in order to efficiently reproduce educative processes through real-world environments learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own skill development goals 	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined with real – world simulation techniques for the proper result typical work space and equipment requirements for the production of courses intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work 	
Required skills and competences to attend Augmented Reality applications & software, Virtual Reality worlds		
 Familiarity with the tools and technology required Adjustment to innovations 		
Best Practices		

OpenSGToolbox

"Communication Tools"

Title:	"Communication tools"		
Description	Description		
Communicatio	n tools can be considered as ever	y tool, software, application etc that provides	
direct audio or/and video connection between the trainers and the trainees, in addition, the			
same tools can offer communication between the group of trainees for collaborative sessions.			
	Advantages (+)	Disadvantages (-)	
· Less e	expensive	· Requires one trainer per trainee	
· Direc	r	 Increased time for the trainer 	
· Impro	ovement of listening, speaking &	compared to classes	
comp	rehension skills		
· Conve	enience		
 No ex 	ctensive technical knowledge		
 Suital 	ole for visually challenged		
реор	le		
· Perso	nalised		
· Increa	ased collaboration between		
instrue	ctor and learners		
• Risk f	ree environment		
. Interc	uction		



Encourage cooperative behavior	
Competencies acquired	
 Communication in the mother tongue Communication in foreign languages Digital Competence Social and civic competences Required skills to develop courses based on Communication tools	Required knowledge to develop courses based on Communication tools
 good level of oral and writing communication skills ability to adjust and correspond immediately learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own skill development goals 	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined with real – time communication tools typical work space and equipment requirements for the production of courses
Required skills and competences to attend co	urses based on Communication tools
 Efficient web access through internet of Familiarity with the tools and technology 	r intranet 3y required
Good ability to cooperate	
Best Practices	
Openmeetings	

"Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community portals"

Title:	"Blog-based learning", "social networking sites", "community portals"
Description	

Description

Blogs, social networking sites and community portals all have in common one thing: they are all available online.

Blogs are websites that host frequent posts and can be of any subject, the material included is mostly text, audio, video, presentations, etc and are very easy to navigate through.

A social network is a social structure made up of individuals (or organizations) called "nodes", which are tied (connected) by one or more specific types of interdependency, such as friendship, kinship, common interest, financial exchange, dislike, sexual relationships, or relationships of beliefs, knowledge or prestige.

Community portal or links page is a web site that functions as a point of access to information in the World Wide Web. A portal presents information from diverse sources in a



unified way. Apart from the standard sear services such as e-mail, news, stock prices, infor	ch engine feature, web portals offer other mation, databases and entertainment.									
Advantages (+)	Disadvantages (-)									
Asynchronous	Basic ICT literacy									
· Convenience	 Internet access and equipment 									
· Cost effective	 Social isolation 									
 Self-paced knowledge 	· indirect									
· Personalized education material										
 Updated information 										
Ongoing access to resources										
Competencies acquired	·									
Communication in the mother tongue										
· Communication in foreign languages										
Digital Competence										
 Learning to Learn 										
Social and civic competences										
Required skills to develop courses based	Required knowledge to develop courses									
on "Blog-based learning", "social	based on "Biog-based learning", "social									
networking sites , commonly pondis	technological background and									
 good level of writing communication skills 	technological background and competencies so as to efficiently									
, ability to adjust and correspond to in	select proper tools for development									
multicultural ways	and utilize all available features									
· learning skills to continuously	 deep knowledge of learning 									
improve techniques and combine	material and methods that shall be									
them appropriately	combined with social networking									
 planning and organizing skills to 	communication tools									
prepare and set up resources and	 typical work space and equipment 									
work space so as to achieve proper	requirements for the production of									
results in good time	courses									
self-management skills to set own										
skill development goals										
Required skills and competences to attend	courses based on "Blog-based learning",									
Social networking sites , commonly pond	15									
Efficient web access through internet of										
Candidative with the tools and technolog	jy required									
· Good ability to cooperate										
Proper social benaviour										
MordProce										
Blogs and articles related to energy efficient	retrofitting									
http://www.washingtonpost.com/blogs/workb	$\log/wp/2013/02/13/u-s-homes-are-aetting-$									
more-efficient-but-still-use-iust-as-much-energy	/									
http://energy.gov/articles/energy-saver-101	http://energy.gov/articles/energy-saver-101-infographic-home-heating									
http://www.energyefficiencymatters.org/#										



<u>"Wiki Tools"</u>

Title:	"Wiki Tools"								
Description									
A wiki is a website that allows the creation and editing of any number of interlinked pages via a web browser using a simplified markup language or a WYSIWYG text ed Wiki tools have a great way of assisting the learning experience and overall offer a support towards the ones that chose to use them.									
	Advantages (+)	Disadvantages (-)							
 Anyone Easy to Wikis aneed to create information Peopletion the wood ocume The will every approces version Widen publish The will structure flexible wide resource source so licere wiki 	e can edit o use and learn are instantaneous so there is no o wait for a publisher to a new edition or update ation e located in different parts of rrld can work on the same ent ki software keeps track of edit made and it's a simple s to revert back to a previous n of an article as access to the power of web hing to non-technical users ki has no predetermined re - consequently it is a e tool which can be used for a ange of applications are a wide range of open software wiki's to choose from hsing costs shouldn't be a r to installing an institutional	 Anyone can edit so this may be too open for some applications, for example confidential documentation. However it is possible to regulate user access Open to SPAM if not managed properly Requires Internet connectivity to collaborate The flexibility of a wiki's structure can mean that information becomes disorganized The usual guidelines for healthy computer use apply 							
Competencies	acquired								
 Digital Learnin Cultura 	Competence ng to Learn al awareness and expression								
Required skill on Wiki Tools	s to develop courses based	Required knowledge to develop courses based on Wiki Tools							
 good I skills learnin improv them a plannin prepar work s 	evel of writing communication og skills to continuously re techniques and combine uppropriately ng and organizing skills to re and set up resources and pace so as to achieve proper	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined with cooperative tools intellectual property considerations 							



results in good time

self-management skills to set own skill development goals

for any person making creative work

Required skills and competences to attend courses based on Wiki Tools

- · Efficient web access through internet or intranet
- Familiarity with the tools and technology required
- · Good ability to cooperate
- Proper social behaviour

Best Practices

Qwiki.com etherpad.com

Wikis related to energy efficient retrofitting

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Passive_solar_heating

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Heat_pump

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Green_building

"Mind mapping"

Title:	"Mind mapping"								
Description	ption								
Concept mapping or also called mind mapping software is used to create diagrams of									
relationships between concepts, ideas or other pieces of information. It has been suggested									
that the mind mapping technique can improve learning / study efficiency up to 15% over									
conventional ne	ote taking.								
	Advantages (+)	Disadvantages (-)							
· Gener	rate s more ideas	 Not applicable to all 							
• Make	new connections	 Time consuming (at first stages) 							
· Improv	ves memory	 Not easy to pass to someone else 							
· Make	use of the whole brain	who was not present at the design							
 Stores 	more information	of the mind map							
 Can in 	corporate additional								
docum	ents (links, files, etc)								
· Rearro	ange order are appropriate								
with le	east effort								
 Creati 	vity								
· Innova	ition								
· Chang	ing ways of work								
Competencies	acquired								
• Learni	ng to Learn								
Required skil	ls to develop courses based	Required knowledge to develop courses							
on Mind map	ping	based on Mind mapping							
· learnir	ng skills to continuously	 technological background and 							
improv	ve techniques and combine	competencies, so as to efficiently							
them o	appropriately	select proper tools for development							

and utilize all available features planning and organizing skills to • prepare and set up resources and deep knowledge of learning work space so as to achieve proper material and suitable mind mapping results in good time methods that shall be combined to achieve proper results self-management skills to set own skill development goals intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work Required skills and competences to attend courses based on Mind mapping Familiarity with the tools and technology required • Good ability to cooperate . **Best Practices**

Mindmeister

Mind mapping related to energy efficient retrofitting

http://www.mindmapart.com/energy-saving-mind-map-jane-genovese/

"Webinars, web meetings, online conferences"

Title:	Title: "Webinars, web meetings, online conferences"							
Description								
The term Web meetings, worl either a record	o conferencing / Webinar refers kshops, etc to be shared with led copy of the event, or a mear	s to a service that allows conferencing events, remote locations. Most vendors also provide ns for a subscriber to record the event.						
	Advantages (+)	Disadvantages (-)						
 full au real-ti no con cost ef flexibi conver partici 	diovisual & action features me interactivity nmuting fectiveness lity nient pation	 computer literacy 						
Competencies	acquired							
Comm Comm Learni Social	unication in the mother tongue unication in foreign languages ng to Learn and civic competences							
Required skill on online con	s to develop courses based ferences	Required knowledge to develop courses based on online conferences						
 good commu ability immed learnir improv them c plannir 	level of oral and writing mication skills to adjust and correspond liately ng skills to continuously ve techniques and combine appropriately ng and organizing skills to	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined with online tools intellectual property considerations 						



 prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own skill development goals 	for any person making creative work						
Required skills and competences to attend co	urses based on online conferences						
· Efficient web access through internet o	Efficient web access through internet or intranet						
Familiarity with the tools and technolog	Familiarity with the tools and technology required						
 Good ability to cooperate 							
 Proper social behavior 							
Best Practices							
Free Web Meeting							
BigBlueButton							
Webinars related to energy efficient retrofitting							
http://www1.eere.energy.gov/buildings/webi	nar_archives.html						

<u>"e-book"</u>

Title:		"e-book"						
Description								
An electronic book (c	Ilso e-book, ebook, electronic l	book, digital book) is a book-length publication in						
computers or other el	ectronic devices.							
Adv	antages (+)	Disadvantages (-)						
 Delivered ins No commuting E-books take to store Portable Can be access Can be store to another me Include links for information of Searchable Multimedia: ea and contain of E-books are p Fonts can be With specific some of the ea It is very simp download an modernized of 	tantaneously y up less space, need no space ssed anywhere d and carried from one place ore safely for easy access to more and related websites e-books can be interactive audio, video and animations printable resized software it is possible to turn e-books into audio books ole and easy to purchase and a e-book. People living in big cities, in a remote village in a	 Little computer literacy is required Can be lost if not backed up (hard drive failure) E-book readers cost money Eyestrain Not all the books are available in ebook format 						



equally access an e-book.								
 It is possible to purchase an e-book 								
24/7/365, from anywhere								
Competencies acquired								
Digital Competence								
 Learning to Learn 								
Required skills to develop e-books	Required knowledge to develop e-books							
 good level of writing communication skills learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own skill development goals 	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be adjusted to create ebook intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work 							
Required skills and competences to attend course	es based on e-books							
· Efficient web access through internet or intr	ranet							
· Familiarity with the tools and technology re	equired							
 Efficient physical ability 								
Best Practices								
Sigil								
E-books related to energy efficient retrofitting								
http://www.ngridenergyworld.com/efficiency/t_b	ook.html							
http://www.ngridenergyworld.com/environment/t_	_book.html							
http://www.bounceenergy.com/docs/ebook-diy-energyefficiency.pdf								
http://books.google.com.cy/books?id=OfiMKyFV8JIC&printsec=frontcover&source=gbs_ge_summar								
y_r&cad=0#v=onepage&q&f=false								

"Online forums"

Title:	"Online forums"									
Description										
An online forum (or message board), is an online discussion website where people can hold										
conversations	conversations in the form of posted messages. The difference from a chat room is in that									
messages are	at least temporarily archived.									
	Advantages (+) Disadvantages (-)									
· Alway	vs available	· Certain familiarity with the forum								
• Hand	e same questions once	setup, computer literacy								
· Inform	nation source	· Reduced concentration and focus								
· Intelle	ctual exchange	Reduced productivity								
· Enhan	ces cooperation and	Chronic procrastination								
comm	unication	· Being distracted by endless debates								

•	Contribution of many people with	& idle gossip								
	better results	 Impaired social skills, neglected 								
	Builds relationships between visitors	relationships, and a weakened								
	No scheduling problems or	social circle (a consequence of								
	interruptions	substituting online socialization for								
	Each person can participate at the	face-to-face conversations)								
	time that suits them	 Lack of real-time interface 								
	Hold concurrent conversations	 Forum management is time 								
	Pooplo can participato in multiplo	consuming								
•	conversations at the same time	Requires high participation in order								
	Meet in larger groups	to be efficient and meaningful								
	By broaking into sub groups	Contribution comments are								
•	By breaking into sub-groups, large	sometimes with poorer language								
	by built record learning									
Compo										
Compe										
•	Communication in the mother tongue									
•	Communication in foreign languages									
•	Mathematical competence and basic co	ompetences in science and technology								
•	Learning to Learn									
Domuin	social and civic competences									
on onl	ea skills to develop courses based	Required knowledge to develop courses								
•	good level of oral and writing	technological background and competencies so as to efficiently								
•	communication skills	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development 								
•	communication skills ability to adjust and correspond	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features 								
•	communication skills ability to adjust and correspond immediately	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning 								
•	good level of oral and writing communication skills ability to adjust and correspond immediately learning skills to continuously	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be 								
· ·	good level of oral and writing communication skills ability to adjust and correspond immediately learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined with online tools 								
•	good level of oral and writing communication skills ability to adjust and correspond immediately learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined with online tools intellectual property considerations 								
	good level of oral and writing communication skills ability to adjust and correspond immediately learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined with online tools intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work 								
	good level of oral and writing communication skills ability to adjust and correspond immediately learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined with online tools intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work 								
	good level of oral and writing communication skills ability to adjust and correspond immediately learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined with online tools intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work 								
· · ·	good level of oral and writing communication skills ability to adjust and correspond immediately learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined with online tools intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work 								
•	good level of oral and writing communication skills ability to adjust and correspond immediately learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own skill development goals	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined with online tools intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work 								
	good level of oral and writing communication skills ability to adjust and correspond immediately learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own skill development goals ed skills and competences to attend co	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined with online tools intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work 								
Requir	good level of oral and writing communication skills ability to adjust and correspond immediately learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own skill development goals ed skills and competences to attend co	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined with online tools intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work 								
	good level of oral and writing communication skills ability to adjust and correspond immediately learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own skill development goals ed skills and competences to attend co Efficient web access through internet of Familiarity with the tools and technolog	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined with online tools intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work 								
	good level of oral and writing communication skills ability to adjust and correspond immediately learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own skill development goals ed skills and competences to attend co Efficient web access through internet of Familiarity with the tools and technolog Good ability to cooperate	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined with online tools intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work 								
	good level of oral and writing communication skills ability to adjust and correspond immediately learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own skill development goals ed skills and competences to attend co Efficient web access through internet of Familiarity with the tools and technolog Good ability to cooperate Proper social behaviour	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined with online tools intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work 								
Requir	good level of oral and writing communication skills ability to adjust and correspond immediately learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own skill development goals ed skills and competences to attend co Efficient web access through internet of Familiarity with the tools and technolog Good ability to cooperate Proper social behaviour	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined with online tools intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work 								
	good level of oral and writing communication skills ability to adjust and correspond immediately learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own skill development goals ed skills and competences to attend co Efficient web access through internet of Familiarity with the tools and technolog Good ability to cooperate Proper social behaviour	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined with online tools intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work 								
Requir	good level of oral and writing communication skills ability to adjust and correspond immediately learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own skill development goals ed skills and competences to attend co Efficient web access through internet of Familiarity with the tools and technolog Good ability to cooperate Proper social behaviour ractices	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined with online tools intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work 								
Requir Best Pr phpbb bbpres	good level of oral and writing communication skills ability to adjust and correspond immediately learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own skill development goals ed skills and competences to attend co Efficient web access through internet of Familiarity with the tools and technolog Good ability to cooperate Proper social behaviour fractices	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined with online tools intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work 								
Requir	good level of oral and writing communication skills ability to adjust and correspond immediately learning skills to continuously improve techniques and combine them appropriately planning and organizing skills to prepare and set up resources and work space so as to achieve proper results in good time self-management skills to set own skill development goals ed skills and competences to attend co Efficient web access through internet of Familiarity with the tools and technolog Good ability to cooperate Proper social behaviour ractices ss related to energy efficient retrofitting www.greenbiz.com/blog/2012/12/04	 technological background and competencies, so as to efficiently select proper tools for development and utilize all available features deep knowledge of learning material and methods that shall be combined with online tools intellectual property considerations for any person making creative work 								



The following diagram shows the different ICT interactive-training tools that the learner can use, divided in categories and giving examples for each.



Figure 7: Diagram: ICT interactions relative to learning



4.1. Selection of ICT training tools

After identifying the previous ICT training tools, it was decided amongst the ee-WiSE partners which tools were more suitable for each knowledge transfer need. For this, each partner provided his/her preferred tool from the point of view of specific agents, playing the role of "Receiver" (R) or "Provider" (P) depending on the need. The answers where compiled in 2 matrices presenting the votes of each ICT training tool per need and per agent (Figure 6 & Figure 8)

MOST VOTED TOOLS PER NEED			"Video in learning courses"	"Simulation"	"Audio in learning"	"Podcasts" (audio lectures)	"e-learning courses" (synchronous, asynchronous)	Mobile learning (mlearning)	"Educational Games"	"Augmented Reality applications & software, Virtual	"Communication Tools"	"Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community portals"	"Wiki Tools"	"Mind mapping"	"Webinars, web meetings, online conferences"	"e-book"	"Online forums"
F	EC guidelines for knowledge dissemination from the	R		1		1	1				1				1		
2	research institutions.	Ρ	1	4		3	4				8	5	1		6	6	5
4.	Exposing the end users to the technological results of the	R	2		1	1	1		1		4	3	1		3	2	2
ash	research organizations.	Ρ	2	6		2			3	4		2			3	1	
F	Connecting technical commercial advice to EPBD - energy	R				4	2		1		1	1	1	2	1	2	2
D	performance and requirements of the actual buildings.	Ρ	1	2		1	1	2	2	1	3	3	1	1	5	1	3

Table 6: Piece of matrix results per need

	MOST VOTED TOOLS PER AGENT		"Video in learning courses"	"Simulation"	"Audio in learning"	"Podcasts" (audio lectures)	"e-learning courses" (synchronous, asynchronous)	Mobile learning (mlearning)	"Educational Games"	"Augmented Reality applications & software, Virtual	"Communication Tools"	"Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community portals"	"Wiki Tools"	"Mind mapping"	"We binars, web meetings, online conferences"	"e-book"	"Online forums"
ers	Technical Colutions	R					4		2	1	4	3	1	1	3	1	5
ovid	reclinical solutions	Ρ	5	2	1	2	6	1	4	2	6	5	2	1	7	6	5
Pro	Manufacturers	R									1				1		
ncta		Ρ	2	3		1		2	1	2	2	1	2	2	4	1	3
rod		R	4	1		1	2	1	1		2		2	1	3	5	1
8 P	installers	Ρ	1	2		2	1		1			2			2	1	3
dge	090	R	2	2		1	6	1		1	5	3		1	2	1	2
wle	K&D		4	11		1	5	1	1	4	9	5	2		8	2	7

Table 7: Piece of matrix results per agent

Each one of these matrices was summarized in a final table exposing the 3 "most voted" ICT training tools, and an additional one distinguishing answers from receivers and providers in each case. The tables below show these ranking results. The results out of this matrices will be employed in the functioning of the Framework itself, such as the favourite tools per agent, per agent as receiver/ provider, etc.

_				Kan	king kesuits per ind	eea	Kanking K	rovider)	
		MOST VOTED TOOLS PER NEED		1°	2°	3°	1°	2°	3°
	F1	EC guidelines for knowledge dissemination from the	R	Communication Tools	Webinars, web	e-book	Communication Tools	Webinars, web meetinas. online	e-learning courses (synchronous.
		research institutions.	Ρ		conferences	C SOOK	Communication Tools	Webinars, web meetinas, online	e-book
4.2		2 Exposing the end users to the technological results of the research organizations.		Webinars, web		Blog-based learning,	Communication Tools	Webinars, web meetings, online	Blog-based learning, social networking sites.
Task	A2			conferences	Simulation	sites, community	Simulation	Augmented Reality applications & software.	Webinars, web meetings, online
	D 4	Connecting technical commercial advice to EPBD -	R	Webinars, web	Online forume	Podcasts (audio	Podcasts (audio lectures)	Online forums	Mind mapping
	54	buildings.	Ρ	conferences	Online forons	lectures)	Webinars, web meetinas. online	Online forums	Blog-based learning, social networkina sites.
	D 2	Occupants need financial support to invest in EE			Webinars, web	Video in learning	Communication Tools	Webinars, web meetings, online	Video in learning courses
	03	retrofitting technology.	Р	Communication 100is	conferences	courses	Podcasts (audio lectures)	Communication Tools	Wiki tools
4.3		dustry needs financial support to take up results of		Webinars, web		Blog-based learning,	Webinars, web	Blog-based learning,	Communication Tools
Task	02	scientific innovation.	P conferences		Communication Tools	sites, community	Communication Tools	Online forums	Webinars, web meetings, online
		The business society needs to be aware of tools to	R	Blog-based learning,	Webinars, web	Mobile learning	Blog-based learning,	Webinars, web	
	A4	manage intellectual property.	Р	social networking sites, community	meetings, online conferences	(mlearning)	Blog-based learning,	Webinars, web	Mobile learning
		Training of construction professionals (including	R	Webinars, web		e-learning courses	Webinars, web	Simulation	e-learning courses
	A5	architects, civil engineers, building services engineers, project managers, building designers, etc) in retrofit	Р	meetings, online conferences	Simulation	(synchronous, asynchronous)	Simulation	Webinars, web meetings, online	Educational Games
		crease business motivation through public R&D tiatives and innovation funding.		Webinars, web		Video in learning	Webinars, web	Communication Tools	Video in learning
	וס			meetings, online conferences	Communication Tools	courses	Webinars, web meetings, online	Communication Tools	Augmented Reality
		Evaluation of publicly funded research projects via	R	Blog-based learning,			Online forums	Blog-based learning,	Webinars, web
	E2	it's applicability to the end-user.		social networking sites, community	Online forums	Simulation	Simulation	social networkina sites. Blog-based learning, social networkina sites.	meetinas. online Podcasts (audio lectures)

Doubling Docult Need

. / D. 1. /D • ... •



1.4	A3	Training the business society to access the knowledge stock.	R P	Webinars, web meetings, online	Educational Games	Video in learning courses	Webinars, web meetinas. online Webinars, web	Video in learning courses Educational Games	Educational Games e-learning courses
Task 4	B1	Establishing network organisations that will coordinate knowledge transfer from innovation	R	Online forums	Webinars, web meetings, online	Blog-based learning, social networking	meetinas, online Webinars, web meetinas, online	Online forums Blog-based learning,	(synchronous. Blog-based learning, social networkina sites.
	СЗ	groups and assist in implementing innovation into R&D to divert their activity rapidly in response to changes in the market.	P R P	Blog-based learning, social networking sites community	conferences Webinars, web meetings, online	Video in learning courses	Blog-based learning, social networking sites. Blog-based learning,	social networkina sites. Webinars, web meetinas. online Webinars, web	Wiki tools Video in learning courses Online forums
	B2	ncreased interaction amongst research institutions.		Online forums	Communication Tools	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	social networkina sites. Webinars, web meetinas. online Communication Tools	meetings, online Online forums Online forums	e-learning courses (synchronous. Blog-based learning,
	в3	Clustering within the retrofit market to provide integrated solutions.	R P	Video in learning courses	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Online forums	Webinars, web meetinas. online Video in learning	Blog-based learning, social networkina sites. Webinars, web	social networking sites, Video in learning courses Online forums
	A1	raining of traditional craftsmen on EE retrofitting movations.		Simulation	Video in learning courses	e-book	Simulation	Video in learning courses Educational Games	Webinars, web meetinas. online Video in learning
4.5	C4	When communicating research results, more focus needs to be given to practical benefits of the retrofit technology.	, R P	Online forums	e-learning courses (synchronous, asynchronous)	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community	Online forums Online forums	Blog-based learning, social networkina sites. e-learning courses	courses Video in learning courses e-book
Task	C2	Real-life evaluation of research results.	R P	Communication Tools	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Communication Tools Communication Tools	Blog-based learning, social networkina sites. Blog-based learning, social networking sites	Online forums Webinars, web
	C1	Scientists need to have increased contact with the end-users in order to understand the applicability of their research.	R P	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Online forums	Communication Tools	Communication Tools Blog-based learning,	Online forums Webinars, web	Blog-based learning, social networkina sites. Online forums

Table 8: Ranking results per need and role



30

Online forums

Educational Games

Online forums

Communication Tools

Online forums

Educational Games

Online forums

Communication Tools

Communication Tools

Communication Tools

Communication Tools

Video in learning courses

Communication Tools Webinars, web meetings, online conferences Podcasts (audio lectures)

Wiki tools

Online forums

Wiki tools

Online forums

				0 /	•	•	•
	MOST VOTED TOOLS PER AGENT		1º	2º	30	1º	2º
	Financial Agents	R	Podcasts (audio	Blog-based learning, social networking	Online forums	Podcasts (audio lectures)	Blog-based learning, socia networking sites, communit
		Ρ	lectures)	portals		Podcasts (audio lectures)	Simulation
ance	Rublic Admin		Blog-based learning, social networking	Podcasts (audio	Webinars, web	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Blog-based learning, socia networking sites, communit
es & Fir	Fublic Autilit.	Ρ	sites, community portals	lectures)	conferences	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community	Podcasts (audio lectures)
ic Bodie	60)/		Podcasts (audio	Blog-based learning, social networking	Online forums	Podcasts (audio lectures)	Blog-based learning, socia networking sites, communit
Publ	307	Ρ	lectures)	sites, community portals	Online lorunis	Podcasts (audio lectures)	Simulation
	Ctondovination	R	Blog-based learning, social networking	Podcasts (audio	Webinars, web	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Blog-based learning, socia networking sites, communit
	Standarization	Ρ	sites, community portals	lectures)	conferences	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community	Podcasts (audio lectures)
	Cottours Development	R	Online ferrure	e-learning	Communication	Online forums	e-learning courses"(synchronous,
	Software Developers	Ρ	Online forums	us, asynchronous)	Tools	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	e-learning courses"(synchronous,
	Tashainal Calutiana	R	Online forume	e-learning	Communication	Online forums	e-learning courses"(synchronous,
lers	Technical Solutions	Ρ	Online lorums	us, asynchronous)	Tools	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	e-learning courses"(synchronous,
s Provic	Manufacturare		Webinars, web	Communication	Online forume	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Communication Tools
roduct	Manufacturers	Р	conferences	Tools	Online lorunis	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Online forums
dge & P			a baak	Webinars, web	Video in learning	e-book	Video in learning courses
nowle	installers	Ρ	e-book	conferences	courses	Online forums	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences
×.	202	R	Communication		e-learning	e-learning courses"(synchronous,	Communication Tools
	R&D	Р	Tools	Simulation	courses"(synchrono us, asynchronous)	Simulation	Communication Tools
	e !!	R	Communication	Olmul II	e-learning	e-learning courses"(synchronous,	Communication Tools
	Climate	Р	Tools	Simulation	us, asynchronous)	Simulation	Communication Tools
_			-	+	i	1 1	1

Ranking Results per Agent

Ranking Results (Receiver/ Provider)



D4.2: ee-WiSE Knowledge Transfer Framework Design

		Benewahle Energy		Webinars, web	Blog-based learning, social networking	e-learning	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community	e-learning courses"(synchronous,
	•	Kenewable Energy	Ρ	conferences	sites, community portals	us, asynchronous)	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Communication Tools	Podcasts (audio lectures)
rovider		Energy Deitributers	R	R Webinars, web	Blog-based learning, social networking	e-learning	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community	e-learning courses"(synchronous,
Darm' D			Ρ	conferences	sites, community portals	us, asynchronous)	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Communication Tools	Podcasts (audio lectures)
ū			R	Webinars, web	Blog-based learning, social networking	g, e-learning courses"(synchrono us, asynchronous)	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community	e-learning courses"(synchronous,
		Gild Operators	Ρ	conferences	sites, community portals		Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Communication Tools	Podcasts (audio lectures)
	0	ESCO	R	Webinars, web	Communication Tools	Cimulation	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Communication Tools	Simulation
Carvica			Ρ	conferences		Simulation	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Simulation	e-book
fitting	Simm	Architect. & Engineer.	R Webinars, we		Circulation	Video in learning	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Simulation	Video in learning courses
C. Batro			Р	conferences	Simulation	courses	Simulation	Video in learning courses	Online forums
2 Maran		Audit Firms	R	Webinars, web	Communication Tools	Simulation	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Communication Tools	Simulation
			Р	conferences			Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Simulation	e-book
		Patent Offices	R	Online forume	Webinars, web	Communication	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Online forums	Mobile learning (mlearning)
ę	ų		Ρ		conferences	Tools	e-learning courses"(synchronous,	Mind mapping	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community
UCATION		Life Cycle Assessment	R		Webinars, web	Communication	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Online forums	Mobile learning (mlearning)
e vilen	naiiry a		Р		conferences	Tools	e-learning courses"(synchronous,	Mind mapping	Communication Tools
C	×	Contificate entities	R	Online forume	Webinars, web	Communication	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Online forums	Mobile learning (mlearning)
		Certificate entities	Р	Unline lorums	conferences	Tools	Online forums	e-book	Communication Tools
		Duilding Manager	R	Blog-based learning, social networking	, Webinars, web	Opling for une	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Online forums
pue		Building Managers	Ρ	sites, community portals	conferences		Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Online forums
Dam		Occurrente	R	Blog-based learning, social networking	Webinars, web	Online forume	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Online forums
		Occupants	Ρ	sites, community portals	conferences		Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Online forums

Table 9: Ranking results per agent and role


5. TOOLS FOR EFFECTIVE KNOWLEDGE TRANSFER

This section will finally show the output for the tools for effective knowledge transfer, which will consider and merge:

- 1. **KT activities:** These are the **Tools for Knowledge Transfer Needs (Section 3).** The KT tools identified refer to KT activities to solve the KT specific needs studied in WP3.
- 2. **Training methods**: These are the *ICT Training Tools* (Section 4). The ICT training tools expose basically the best training methods for the needs.

Graphically explained, with the figure below it can be noted that KT activities and Training methods are identified considering the KT needs, and that the combination of these 2 findings will provide a comprehensive and an effective tool for Knowledge Transfer. This will be the KT – ICT Tool, which will provide a set of guidelines or recommendations to assist receivers and providers of knowledge to implement the KT activities using Training methods.



Figure 8: Knowledge Transfer ICT tool

5.1. KT-ICT Tools' Structure

5.1.1. Guidelines for creating a Lesson Curriculum

In order to follow a structure a lesson curriculum can be applicable as a the KT-ICT tool methodology, considering as well training methods, type of course materials, training schedule and the evaluation of the training impact.

Summary:	A concise summary of the course, stating what it will be achieved through and why people need it. This section will help in identifying and keeping track of the development phase, but also it can be used in order to get the attention of					
	the target audience.					
Target Audience:	Here a description of the target group should be provided.					
	I hink about the type of people the course is aimed for, what is their skill level?					
	(Beginner, intermediate, advanced), what do they like / need and why is this					
A	The main report of the set of the					
Agent:	The main agent from the value Chain that this Lesson/ Tool is focused to					
Other Agents	All the other Agents from the value Chain that this Lesson $/$ Tool is focused to as					
involvement:	well					
Objective(s):	In that section the objectives of the specific training tool $/$ activity should be					
	recorder and presented to the end user. Usually they are presented as bullets					
Result(s) desired/	This is an area that lets a lot of great training courses down. Many aren't					
Learning	developed with specific learning outcomes (or learning objectives), so the end					
Outcomes:	result is often an obscure takeaway message. This will leave you with an					
	unsatisfied audience and a lot more questions to answer. Learning outcomes					
	are actually really easy to write, they need to be specific and focus on the					
	participant. The best way to approach them is to think in terms of what your					
	learner should be able to do at the end of the training. e.g.: In this article I will					
	teach you how to use a lesson plan. By the end of this article, you will be able					
	to design a customised lesson plan for a training course that leaves your					
	audience raving to all their triends.					
lime:	The goal in this section is to indicate the level of commitment required by the					
	participant in terms of minutes / hours / days / weeks (i.e. approximately o					
T	hours total, or 2 hours per week for 3 weeks etc.).					
mathad	the way you plan to offer your training content. It could be in a classroom					
memoa:	setting (through the use of an online webings event) using bested video or					
	audio learner workbooks (electronic or print) or via a structured eleganing					
	platform. You can be as creative as you like with the format of your training					
	by mixing different delivery types to suit the outcome that you are trying to					
	achieve, and keep things interesting for your audience at the same time.					
Key Competences	Key competences for lifelong learning are a combination of knowledge, skills					
Covered:	and attitudes appropriate to the context. They are particularly necessary for					

Lesson Curriculum



	 personal fulfilment and development, social inclusion, active citizenship and last but not least employment. The European Union highly active and sensitized on the issue of competencies either for education, work or training proceeded on making important recommendation on Key competencies for Life Long Learning and proceeded in producing an eight (8) key competency list on Life Long Learning for all Member States to use and benefit from. Here the Key competences of the EU reference framework should be presented: Communication in mother tongue Communication in foreign languages Mathematical competence and basic competences in science and 					
	technology					
	Digital Competence					
	Learning to Learn Seciel and Civic Commetences					
	 Social and Civic Competences Sonse of initiative and entropropeurship 					
	Cultural awareness and expression					
Participant	Depending on the type of training course you are planning to offer, this may or					
Requirements:	may not be necessary. Consider any materials, equipment, software or other					
	resources that participants will require in order to undertake your training course and list each.					
	If these are items that your audience will need to purchase, you might like to put in some leg work and make a list of all the best deals for them, particularly if there are some cheaper alternatives that work just as well.					
Material Needed:	It should list any resources that you will need in order to deliver the course (i.e. reference materials, workbooks that need to be made ahead of time, online or other electronic resources like video or audio, props or other tools that help you better demonstrate a concept).					
Pre-requisites:	Sometimes it is necessary to establish a baseline of knowledge prior to delivering your course, so that everyone is at a similar level and more time can be devoted to achieving your desired learning outcomes.					
	List any pre-reading or review of other reference materials that participants should do prior to undertaking your course. This might also include reviewing websites, watching online videos, or completing a survey with information that is used during the course.					
Trainer Skills and	This section identifies the specific roles and responsibilities required to deliver					
Roles:	the training.					

Table 10: Guidelines for creating a Lesson Curriculum



Training Methods

This section describes the training methods that can be utilized.

rm						
Participants apply knowledge on the job, unlock participant potential, increase knowledge sharing and reinforce other training methods.						
cal nd ws ate						
ess						
ent						
ce, sts,						
ant cal AE)						
ed						
out						
of these activities will be shared with the larger group and used as input to the						
ves						
2112						

Table 11: Training Methods

Course Materials

This section describes the course materials that will be used.

Administrative materials	
Accreditation/ certification materials	• Each credentialing and continuing education body has its own requirements and forms required to request credit for a course
Course	May be two separate documents or one combined document
description/	Describes the course content
agenda	Sets expectations for the course
	 Includes duration, breaks, objectives, prerequisites



Course evaluations	 Kirkpatrick Level 1 Reaction – Measures participant's reaction to various aspects of the training including satisfaction with content, instructors, learning environment and appropriateness of material for learner group Measure the achievement of learning objectives 					
Course registration forms	Requests participant demographic information Confirms registrant has taken prerequisites or meets other requirements (e.g.: rank, education, certification)					
Invitation or course announcement/ advertisement	 Announce the course and requests the presence of the recipient Should include course objectives; target audience (if mandatory, this should be noted); location, date and time of course (may include transportation options and/or a map) 					
Participant records	 Records should be created and maintained in a secure environment Academic records are governed by multiple regulations, laws and accreditation standards Official records may include: Dates of enrolment Courses taken, with the units of credit or time allotted to each subject Examination results 					
Pre- and/or post- assessment exams • Level 2 Learning – Pre- and/or Post-Assessment measures knowled gained during the training • Measures the achievement of learning objectives						
Sign In Sheet	Participants document training attendance					
Learner Materials						
Activities and Exercises	 Provide immediate practice opportunity for new skills Allow instructor/facilitator to monitor transfer of learning and adjust pace 					
Handouts	 Include pertinent course summaries to be used for reference during and after the course 					
Job Aids	• Graphics, flow charts, process flows, checklists to be used for quick reference after the course					
Manuals	Support course instructionProvide post-course reference					
Presentations	Used to support verbal presentationReach visual learners					
Visual aids	• Flip charts, posters to be used for posting frequently referenced training concepts					
Workbooks	Provide post-course reference					
Instructor materials						
Attendee list	• Allows instructor to prepare for and tailor group exercises to the number of participants					
Contact list	• List of important points of contact (e.g.: training team members, computer and technology support, venue managers, dining and hotel information)					
Facilitator guides	 Provide clear guidance and procedural notes on the event timing, content, delivery style and delivery methods instructors/facilitators should follow Support consistent delivery from session to session and between different 					



•	Describes equipment and supply needs							
•	Background on a specific technical topic, guidance and questions to raise							
	on role playing exercise							
Instructor notes •	 Provides direction to the facilitator regarding: Ideas, points and examples the instructor may use during content delivery Frequently asked questions and appropriate answers How to set up exercises How to de-brief exercises 							

Table 12: Course Material

Training Schedule

This section can be used to develop a timeline for developing and delivering training. The schedule also includes necessary coordination and logistics tasks.

Timeline	Activity
Time period	
Time period	
Time period	

Table 13: Training Schedule

Evaluation of Training Impact

This section describes the process that will be used to determine how training has influenced a participant's performance and how that impact translates into results for the larger targeted group.

Kirkpatrick Level		Description	Data Collection Methods
Level 1	Reaction		
Level 2	Learning	To what degree participants acquire the intended knowledge, skills, attitudes, confidence and commitment based on their participation in a training event.	
Level 3	Behaviour	To what degree participants apply what they learned during training when they return to duty.	
Level 4	Results	To what degree targeted outcomes occur as a result of the training event and subsequent reinforcement.	

Table 14: Evaluation of the training impact



Empty Lesson Template

From the Guidelines to create a lesson template, the empty template is the first resource that should be considered to develop a proper training material.

Summary:	
Target Audience:	
Agent:	
Other Agents involvement:	
Objective(s):	
Result(s) desired/ Learning	
Outcomes:	
Time:	
Training Type/ method:	
Key Competences	
Covered:	
Participant Requirements:	
Material Needed:	
Pre-requisites:	
Trainer Skills and Roles:	

Table 15: Lesson Plan Empty Template

5.1.2. Implementation

With the feedback gathered from the ee-WiSE consortium regarding their "favourite ICT tool" exposed in section 4.3, the results per need were selected as most suitable regarding the development of the KT-ICT tool. This is because this result considers all the agents involved regardless of their "Receiver" or "Provider" role in the KT problem studied.

The empty template has been adapted and organized to provide the relevant information that should take part of the KT-ICT tool, including the guidelines. Each adapted template has been completed per need and some material example has been included. Therefore, the lesson templates presented in the next sections, have considered all the training material features explained above, the favourite choices per need, and the particular analysis of each one of the needs in the previous sections. As a result, these lesson templates are the best way to expose the integrated KT-ICT tool, as the most valuable output of Deliverable 4.2 to the ee-WiSE Project.



Ranking Results per Need

MOST VOTED TOOLS PER NEED				1°	2°	3°
	E1	EC guidelines for knowledge dissemination from the research institutions.	R P	Communication Tools	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	e-book
Task 4.2	A2	² Exposing the end users to the technological results of the research organizations.		Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Simulation	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community
	Connecting technical commercial advice to EPBD - B4 energy performance and requirements of the actual buildings.		R P	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Online forums	Podcasts (audio lectures)
	D3	Occupants need financial support to invest in EE retrofitting technology.	R P	Communication Tools	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Video in learning courses
Task 4.3	D2	Industry needs financial support to take up results of scientific innovation.	R P	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Communication Tools	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community
	Α4	The business society needs to be aware of tools to manage intellectual property.	R P	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Mobile learning (mlearning)
	A5	Training of construction professionals (including architects, civil engineers, building services engineers, project managers, building designers, etc) in retrofit	R P	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Simulation	e-learning courses (synchronous, asynchronous)
	D1	Increase business motivation through public R&D initiatives and innovation funding.	R P	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Communication Tools	Video in learning courses
	E2	Evaluation of publicly funded research projects via it's applicability to the end-user.	R P	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community	Online forums	Simulation
4.4	A3	Training the business society to access the knowledge stock.	R P	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Educational Games	Video in learning courses
Task	B 1	Establishing network organisations that will coordinate knowledge transfer from innovation groups and assist in implementing innovation into	R P	Online forums	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community
	C3	R&D to divert their activity rapidly in response to changes in the market.	R P	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Video in learning courses
	B2	Increased interaction amongst research institutions.	R P	Online forums	Communication Tools	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences
	BЗ	Clustering within the retrofit market to provide integrated solutions.	R P	Video in learning courses	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Online forums
Tαsk 4.5	A1	Training of traditional craftsmen on EE retrofitting innovations.	R P	Simulation	Video in learning courses	e-book
	C4	When communicating research results, more focus needs to be given to practical benefits of the retrofit technology.	R P	Online forums	e-learning courses (synchronous, asynchronous)	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community
	C2	Real-life evaluation of research results.	R P	Communication Tools	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences
	CI	Scientists need to have increased contact with the end-users in order to understand the applicability of their research.	R P	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Online forums	Communication Tools

 Table 16: Lesson Plan Empty Template

Summary:	E1 - EC guidelines for knowledge dissemination from the research institutions						
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand	
	Public Admin	Software Developers		ESCO	Certificate Entries	Building Managers	
Providers	GOV	Technical Solutions		Architect & Engineer		Occupants	
		Manufacturers		Audit Firms			
		Installers					
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand	
Receivers		R&D					
Receivers							
	A. P						
what to be achieved:	Assist research in research results	stitutions in unders	standing and ado	pting EC defined	guidelines for diss	seminating	
Result(s) desired/ Learning	EC guidelines on project guideline	knowledge dissen s with regard to c	nination in a clear lissemination / ex	and precise form ploitation of rese	nat (possibly "dicto arch project result	ated" by funded s)	
Training Type/ method (ICT Tools):	Communication Tools	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	e-book				
Participant Requirements:	Members of R&D that carry out res	departments from search activities an	n Universities, Res nd have research	search Centres, Co results they need	ompanies and other to disseminate	er Organisations	
Material Needed:	EC guidelines on (webinars, online	dissemination / e. forums, blog bas	xploitation of rese ed learning, e-bo	earch project resu ok)	lts in an approprie	ate format	
Guidelines/ Recommendati ons	 Include references to the feedback received from users (public bodies, product / service providers, quality assurance, occupants) in the guidelines Provide direct audio or/and video connection between the trainers and the trainees Use Web conferencing / Webinar as another option Enable communcation / training in remote locations through web conferencing events, meetings, workshops Provide either a recorded copy of the event, or a means for a subscriber to record the event 						
Links	http://ec.europa.eu/invest-in-research/pdf/download_en/knowledge_transfe_07.pdf http://ec.europa.eu/invest-in-research/pdf/download_en/ip_recommendation.pdf https://www.surrey.ac.uk/ces/files/David-Huw_Owen_Powerpoint.pdf						

5.2. KT-ICT Tools to disseminate general EE retrofitting knowledge (Task 4.2)



Summary:	A2 - Exposing the end users to the technological results of the research organizations						
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand	
		Software Developers	Renewable Energy	ESCO			
Providers		Technical Solutions		Architect & Engineer			
		Manufacturers					
		Installers					
		R&D					
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand	
						Building	
Receivers						Managers	
						Occupants	
What to be achieved:	The specific knowledge transfer actions aim to inform building occupants and owners about the latest technological solutions and trends in the EE retro-fitting market. Real demonstration projects can also be designed and implemented based on viable business models where the investment necessary is set against the future economic as well as environmental benefits						
Result(s) desired/ Learning Outcomes:	Case studies have different actors t regions under the	e shown that real ogether, to desigr supervision and p	action is greatly f n, finance and imp political / technico	facilitated, throug blement, model EE al support of local	h regional project retro-fit solutions authorities	s bringing in specific	
Training Type/ method (ICT Tools):	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Simulation	Blog- Based Learning				
Participant Requirements:	Participants shou	ld include End-Use	ers such as Building	g Managers and (Occupants		
Material Needed:	Educational Mate Regulations and (erial, Simulation So Certification	olutions, Leaflets,	Data concerning F	inancial, EE Techn	ologies, Building	
Guidelines/ Recommendati ons	 Present learning material in a simple and concise manner, avoiding scientific language and technical jargon Make use of EC guidelines for research results dissemination for valuable feedback / ideas Employ Web conferencing / Webinar learning tools which offer options for online or offline (pre- recorded events) communcation / training in remote locations Use simulation tools as another preferred option which can be produced in all fields through computer games, role-plays, or building models Create an immersive learning experience through simulation tools which are suitable for all people with different cultural backgrounds 						
Links	http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=uSL5QmRKyOA http://energy.gov/articles/energy-saver-101-infographic-home-heating http://www.ngridenergyworld.com/efficiency/t_book.html						



Summary:	B4 - Connecting technical commercial advice to EPBD - energy performance and requirements of the actual buildings								
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand			
				ESCO	Certificate Entries	Occupants			
Providers				Architect & Engineer Audit Firms					
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand			
Receivers	Public Admin	Software Developers		ESCO					
	GOV	Technical Solutions		Architect & Engineer					
	Standarization	Installers		Audit Firms					
What to be achieved:	The specific knowledge transfer actions aim to connect technical commercial advice to the Energy Performance of Buildings Directive, ie. the energy performance and requirements of the actual buildings								
Result(s) desired/ Learning Outcomes:	The knowledge will be transfered through targeted events (webinars, web meetings, online conferences, forums and audio lectures) which will provide the necessary technical information, but will also serve as a starting point for further actions mobilising public bodies and product / service providers to adopt the specific requirements of the EPBD								
Training Type/ method (ICT Tools):	Webinars, Web Meeting, Online Conferences	Online forums	Podcasts (audio lectures)						
Participant Requirements:	The target audie Developers, Tech	nce includes, Publi nical Solution Prov	ic Admininstration, viders, Instalers, E	Government & S SCOs, Architects &	tandarization Boc & Engineers and A	lies, Software Judit Firms			
Material Needed:	Educational Mate Regulations and 0	erial, Audio Lectur Certification	es, Brochures, Lea	flets, Data concer	ning EE Technolog	ies and Building			
Guidelines/ Recommendati ons	 Please bear in mind that the audience is technically competent so scientific jargon maybe used in the learning material Employ Web conferencing / Webinar learning tools which offer options for online or offline (pre-recorded events) communcation / training in remote locations Include Online Forums and Podcasts in your "toolbox" as two other popular options Handle similar issues once, enable contributions from many users and avoid scheduling problems or interruptions through the use of online Forums / discussions Use Podcasts as a less expensive tool to offer a mobile, interesting and convenient way for accessing information / training material 								
Links	http://www.yout http://www.bre.c http://www.builc	ube.com/watch?v co.uk/filelibrary/ ling.co.uk/is-the-g	=GHk2Tk9E6AI Scotland/Energy_ jovernment-ready	Performance_of_ -for-the-epbd?/5	Buildings_Directiv 036193.article	e_(EPBD).pdf			



Summary:	4.2 Communication Plan for Society								
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand			
	Financial Agents	Software Developers	Renewable Energy	ESCO	Life Cycle Assessment				
Providers	Public Admin	Technical Solutions	Energy Distributors	Architect & Engineer	Certificate Entries				
	GOV	Manufacturers	Grid Operators	Audit Firms					
	Standarization	R&D							
		Climate							
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand			
	Financial Agents	Software Developers	Renewable Energy			Building Managers			
Receivers	GOV	Technical Solutions	Energy Distributors			Occupants			
		Manufacturers	Grid Operators						
		Installers							
What to be achieved:	The Communication Plan is to be used by public administration and similar entities that wish to communicate the benefits and solutions of EE retrofitting to the society								
Result(s) desired/ Learning	Ideally an EE Communication Plan should employ actions relating to, a) End-User mobilisation and Training / Education events, b) Web-Portal, Social Media support, and c) Cluster / Regional EE Projects demonstarting Innovative Retro-Fit initiatives								
Training Type/ method (ICT Tools):	Educational Games	Webinars, Web Meeting, Online Conferences	Simulation						
Participant Requirements:	Actions will great regional R&D org providers, EE retu model EE retro-fi authorities.	tly be facilitated, ganisations, certifi ro-fitting profession t solutions in speci	through regional ication bodies, pul onals & technolog ific regions under	projects bringing blic authorities, fir y solution provide the supervision ar	different actors to ancial organisations rs and end-users), ad political support	ogether (eg. ons, energy , to implement, rt of local			
Material Needed:	Educational Mate Standartisation, E	erial, Educational EE Technologies, L	Games, Simulation ocal Climate, Ener	n Solutions, Data o gy, Building Reg	concerning Financi ulations and Certi	ial, ification			
Guidelines/ Recommendati ons	 Address Public Authorities and End-Users (Occupants) as the main actors in a Communication Plan for Society Enchance the Communication Process through the involvement of other actors (product / service providers or professionals) Make innovative Retro-Fit Technology Solutions more explicit through real life Cluster / Regional EE Demonstartion Projects Bear in mind that the most preferred option of learning is Educational Games which can be engaging to all ages Encourage cooperative, creative & competitive behaviour, through Educational Games as a more interesting way to enhance the retention of knowledge 								
Links	http://www.mari http://www.take http://www.eaci	e-medstrategic.e yourenergyback. -projects.eu/iee/	u/en.html eu/home.html page/Page.jsp?oj	o=project_detail8	&prid=2599				



Summary:	C3. R&D to divert their activity rapidly in response to changes in the market.									
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand				
Providers		Technical Solutions				Building Managers				
		Manufacturers				Occupants				
		Installers								
		KQD								
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand				
	Public Admin	Technical		Architect &						
Receivers		Solutions		Engineer						
	GOV	R&D								
What to be achieved:	 Drive the knowledge providers to effectively transfer their technology. Transform Guidelines as tools for R&D to find needs from the tradional workforce and the end user. 									
Result(s) desired/ Learning Outcomes:	 Research institut constantly update needs. In many cases, penough to change of energy retrofi Sometimes the penough to the penoug	tions and compani ed and informatio projects are being e its order with the tting sector. problem of some r	ies responsible for n of changes in th g funded and dire e aim to adapt to research projects i	r engaging in rese e market to chang cted for a particu the changes that is its long duration	arch and develop ge its research add lar purpose, but sl arise from the cons	ment should be apted to the real nould be flexible stant innovation				
Time:	The knowledge p material	rovider has to sta	te the duration in	order to achive k	nowledge tranfer	using the				
Training Type/ method (ICT Tools):	Blog-based learning, social networking sites,	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Video in Iearning courses							
Participant Profile:	Members of R&D requirments has t	departments, Exp o be difined by th	perties in the field ne provider of the	. (Depending on t material)	he learning materi	al more				
Material Needed:	Videos, Presenta learning.	tions on the topic,	Samples, it is need	ded also a platfo	rm on which create	e the blog-based				
Guidelines/ Recommendati ons	 Create a mecha If you are relat produce impulse Keep the experimeasures. 	nism (Forum, etc)t ed to an experime the training exper rimental building u	that will feedback ental building, allo rience and assist c updated by collak	the R&D institutes ow visitors for a li onnecting EE direc porating with solut	with the market n ving demonstration tly to the market. ions designers to t	needs . n in order to est their EE				
Links	http://www.yout http://www.yout	ube.com/watch?v= ube.com/watch?v=	=Vxb8lFuhlel;h =NBbNEcnHTMk;	ttp://www.youtuk	pe.com/watch?v=-	8VWuSZPwKs;				

5.3. KT-ICT Tools to boost the market (Task 4.3)

Summary:	B2. Increased in	teraction amongs	t research institu	B2. Increased interaction amongst research institutions.								
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand						
		R&D										
Providers		 	 	 	 							
		 	 	<u>+</u>	1	1						
		<u> </u>	t	<u>t</u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>						
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand						
Pacaivars	Public Admin	R&D	 	<u> </u>	<u> </u>							
Receivers	GOV	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>								
		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	+	1							
What to be achieved:	 Io create and attend expo tairs, where R&D institutes presents their research Creation of knowledge banks Creation of online forums in order that R&D institutes get in touch with the innovation produced in other R&D institutes. 											
Result(s) desired/ Learning Outcomes:	 It is required the involvement of value chain agents that might be large and complex organisations in their nature, for example public administration bodies, universities, and ultimately cluster frameworks that will involve a large number of entities of different natures and different capacities and interests When implementing any of the knowledge management solutions, it is necessary to define strict working areas and modes of operation in order to safeguard the knowledge management rights of each of the individual agents themselves. 											
Training Type/ method (ICT Tools):	Video In Learning Courses	Podcast (audio lectures)	Webinars, Web Meeting, Online Conferences									
Participant Profile:	PubA,Gov, R&D											
Material Needed:	Videos, Presenta	tions on the topic,	Samples, Audio le	ectures.								
Guidelines/ Recommendati ons	 Create a Datable Create an oper Keep always a Use videos apares solutions designer Experimental biolity If you are related produce impulse Keep the experimental series 	Dase with all the a 1 Calendar with al visual explanatio 1rt for the e-mater r. uilding projects ha red to an experim- the training exper- rimental building u	Ilready developed Il EE events which n of how the EE sy ial to disseminate ave a lot of useful ental building, alle rience and assist c updated by collate	d EE solutions can be uptaded f 'stem works and is EE building comp demonstration ma ow visitors for a li connecting EE director porating with solut	rom all the involed s installed. conents and system aterial for EE traini ving demonstration ctly to the market. tions designers to t	d agents is if you are a ing. n in order to rest their EE						
Links	www.proyectoec	<u>lea.com/en/ ; ww</u>	w.enea.it ; http:/	/www.youtube.co	m/watch?v=t5Dm	6Dxn6B4						



Summary:	B3. Clustering within the retrofit market to provide integrated solutions.									
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand				
		Software Developers	Renewable Energy	Architect & Engineer						
Providers		Technical	Energy							
		Manufacturers	Distributors							
		R&D								
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand				
	Public Admin	Installers		ESCO		Building Managers				
Receivers	GOV			Architect & Engineer		Occupants				
	The gim is to grad regional networking of companies working in setseficities incovation sizes this set									
What to be achieved:	 Ine diffusion of innovative technologies due to its social impact. Networking should create synergies to stimulate innovation. 									
Result(s) desired/ Learning Outcomes:	 Different companies engaged in the production of materials or labor devoted to energy retrofitting should unite their products, human and knowledge to generate products or solutions that facilitate the implementation of technical solutions and economically viable for the building user The business society should use knowledge from technicians and research institutions to bring to market more efficient solutions with a future in the sector. Several elements from different agents of the value chain makes necessary the knowledge transfer between them, and the union of forces to create materials or solutions more economic and feasible, and to facilitate energy rehabilitation. Capital investments are needed and they are difficult to obtain. 									
Training Type/ method (ICT Tools):	Video in learning courses	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Online forums							
Participant Profile:	Target Audience	includes :Occupar	nt, Installer, Gov, F	ubA, Build Manaç	ge, TechSol, R&D,	Manufacturer				
Material Needed:	Material reaquire with energy effic	ed for this issue is iency. Topics that	video clips abou cover the needs th	t retrfoting, presen ne retrofit.	ntations bout how	society deals				
Guidelines/ Recommendati ons	 Keep always a visual explanation of how the EE system works and is installed. Notice that simulation tools are the favorite choice for this Knowledge, so software developers need to get involved. Use videos apart for the e-material to disseminate EE building components and systems if you are a solutions designer. Experimental building projects have a lot of useful demonstration material for EE training. If you are related to an experimental building, allow visitors for a living demonstration in order to produce impulse the training experience and assist connecting EE directly to the market. Keep the experimental building updated by collaborating with solutions designers to test their EE measures. 									
Links	<u>www.powerhouse</u> d%5D=106	eeurope.eu/nc/ca	ses resources/cas	e studies/single	view/?tx_phecase	estudies pi3%5Bi				



Summary:	B1. Establishing network organisations that will coordinate knowledge transfer from innovation groups and assist in implementing innovation into daily building practice.									
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand				
		Software Developers			Patent Offices					
Providers		Technical			Life Cycle					
		Solutions			Assessment					
		Manufacturers								
		R&D								
		Climate								
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand				
	Financial Agents	Installers	Renewable Energy	ESCO	Certificate Entries	Building Managers				
Receivers	Public Admin		Energy Distributors	Architect & Engineer		Occupants				
	Standarization		Grid Operators	Audit Firms						
	GOV									
What to be achieved:	 managers, technicians, etc.) is easier that all members of the value chain can have instant access to the knowledge necessary to carry out a energy retrofitting strategy. Create a virtual knowledge network, it can be difficult because the complexity of their creation and is necessary to kept up to date knowledge always. If a virtual network would be created the platform should have people who update the data, otherwise it would not help. 									
Result(s) desired/ Learning Outcomes:	 Information transfer through media exposure, organisation of exhibitions, documentation archiving, demonstration projects, training plans, networking, etc. A scenario could also be created in which it would be obligatory for governments, non-governmental organizations, universities, companies and other institutions to join these networks through an EU-wide recognised standardisation body. 									
Training Type/ method (ICT Tools):	Online forums	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community							
Participant Profile:	Participants in thi Tech. Sol, Climate Audit, ESCO, Inst	is case are Pub. A e, Software, Manu allers.	d., E. Dist., Renew. Ifacturers, Standa	. En., Grid Op., A rd, Pub. Ad., E. [A&E, Audit, ESCO, I Dist., Renew. En., Gr	nstallers, R&D, id Op., A&E,				
Material Needed:	Presentations, po	dcasts ,platform t	o create the forun	ns and platform	to create blogs					
Guidelines/ Recommendati ons	 Should be created open discussions with moderators that will advise , learn how to deal with the topics Keep always a visual explanation of how the EE system works and is installed. Notice that even though the simulation tools are not the favorite choice for this Knowledge, a very fast simulated outcame on the results of EE will create lot of advandages Experimental building projects have a lot of useful demonstration material for EE training. If you are related to an experimental building, allow visitors for a living demonstration in order to produce impulse the training experience and assist connecting EE directly to the market. Keep the experimental building updated by collaborating with solutions designers to test their EE measures. 									
Links	http://www.yout	ube.com/watch?v ube.com/watch?v	=yfsDetHMiow;h =cN6YrraaLIM;I	http://www.yout	ube.com/watch?v= struction21.eu/	1WjBilqyTxU;				



Summary:	A3. Training the business society to access the knowledge stock.								
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand			
		Software Developers	Renewable Energy	ESCO					
Providers		Technical Solutions							
		Manufacturers							
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand			
Receivers	Public Admin	Installers		Architect & Engineer					
What to be achieved:	 It is necessary to raise awareness among companies managers, because they must devote economic and personal resources to the acquisition of knowledge and so access the existing knowledge stock. By raising awareness in the acquisition of knowledge, it can improve knowledge transfer between members of the value chain. 								
Result(s) desired/ Learning	 To create a fra and how it works 	mework that will	provide informatic	on about the retro	fitting process, typ	pes of retrofitting			
Training Type/ method (ICT Tools):	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Educational Games	Video in learning courses						
Participant Profiles:	PubA/Installers/	A&E TechSol/Ma	nufacturer/Softwa	are/ESCO					
Material Needed:	Educational Mate drawings.	erial, Simulation S	olutions, videos, le	aflets with instruct	ions and brochure	s with simple			
Guidelines/ Recommendati ons	 Material should be clear and easy to adopt by the memebers Keep always a visual explanation of how the EE system works and is installed. Notice that Educational Game tools are among the favorite choice for this Knowledge, so software developers need to get involved. Use videos apart for the e-material to disseminate EE building components and systems if you are a solutions designer. Experimental building projects have a lot of useful demonstration material for EE training. If you are related to an experimental building, allow visitors for a living demonstration in order to produce impulse the training experience and assist connecting EE directly to the market. Keep the experimental building updated by collaborating with solutions designers to test their EE measures. 								
Links	www2.schneider- university.page projects.eu/jee/j	electric.com/sites , www.socialhousi ogge/Page.isp?og	/corporate/en/pr ingaction.com;wv o=project_detail8	oducts-services/tı vw.eaci- xprid=1724	raining/energy-un	iversity/energy-			



Summary:	E2. Evaluation of publicly funded research projects via it's applicability to the end-user.									
Providers	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers R&D	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand				
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand				
Receivers	Public Admin GOV					Building Managers				
What to be achieved:	 Creat platform to show the end user (most interested in the rehabilitation of their homes and buildings) what kind of tools are advisable to improve energy efficiency in their buildings and to obtain a good thermal comfort inside. Since it has been allocated financial means to finance these projects, they need to be reached the greatest number of people, especially, who must start jumpstart the energy retrofitting process. 									
Result(s) desired/ Learning Outcomes:	 Within the European Union there are research projects on energy retrofitting which have concluded as a result the demonstration of efficient installations, construction systems or good practices to give to end users of the houses. 									
Training Type/ method (ICT Tools):	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community	Online forums	Simulation							
Participant Profile:	Members that she	ould attend are :	R&D , Public Admi	nistration, Gover	nment					
Material Needed:	Simulation solutio information in the	ons, transparent in e database, Platf	formation how to orm for the forums	deal with the pro	jects, how to searc	h for the				
Guidelines/ Recommendati ons	 Language that is used should be clear Create a easily accessible FAQ Forum with who to use EE measures Keep always a visual explanation of how the EE system works and is installed. Notice that simulation tools is among the the favorite choice for this Knowledge, so software developers need to get involved. Use videos apart for the e-material to disseminate EE building components and systems if you are a solutions designer. Experimental building projects have a lot of useful demonstration material for EE trainingespecially for building managers. If you are related to an experimental building, allow visitors for a living demonstration in order to produce impulse the training experience and assist connecting EE directly to the market. Keep the experimental building updated by collaborating with solutions designers to test their EE measures. 									
Links	www.elih-med.eu http://www.yout	u/Layout/elih-med ube.com/watch?v	<mark>d; fund.corpbank</mark> =sQ_mndyVY6A	<u>.bg</u> ;						



Summary:	D1. Increase bus	iness motivation	through public R	&D initiatives ar	id innovation fun	ding.	
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand	
Providere	Financial Agents	Software Developers					
FIOVICIEIS		Manufacturers					
		R&D					
		Climale					
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand	
	Public Admin	Technical Solutions	Renewable Energy	ESCO		Occupants	
Receivers	GOV	Instalers	Energy Distributors	Architect & Engineer			
			Grid Operators				
What to be achieved:	 use their own resources to cover these matters. Research institutes, universities and administration (as public or semi-public bodies), obtain resources for this purpose, but to promote the financing or private sector could increase the production of rehabilitation techniques and energy resources, generating employment otherwise directed research in the private sector. 						
Result(s) desired/ Learning	 Dealing with innovation funding there is a high need of funds. Therefore meetings presenting the ideas to the shareholders like (banks, financial institutions) are welcome. 						
Training Type/ method (ICT Tools):	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Communication Tools	Video in learning courses				
Participant Profile:	Occupants, Install	lers, R&D, Manufc	acturer, Software,	A&E, RenewEN	•		
Material Needed:	Leaflets , videos,	basic start mater	rials about bank p	oroducts,			
Guidelines/ Recommendati ons	 Learning material should be presented in a simple manner. Keep always a visual explanation of how the EE system works and is installed. Create Public funded websites in which new ideas can be funed either for financial institutes or VC's Notice that simulation tools are not among the favorite choice for this Knowledge, but specific agents will be helped for these tools Use videos apart for the e-material to disseminate EE building components and systems if you are a solutions designer. Experimental building projects have a lot of useful demonstration material for EE training. If you are related to an experimental building, allow visitors for a living demonstration in order to produce impulse the training experience and assist connecting EE directly to the market. Keep the experimental building updated by collaborating with solutions designers to test their EE measures. 						
Links	www.marie-meds	strategic.eu/en/su	uccess-stories-or-b	est-practices/bes	t-practices.html		
	nttp://www.kicks	<u>tarter.com/</u>					



Summary:	A5. Training of construction professionals (including architects, civil engineers, building services engineers, project managers, building designers, etc) in retrofit technologies.									
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand				
	Public Admin	Technical Solutions		Architect & Engineer						
Froviders	GOV	R&D								
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand				
. .				Architect & Engineer						
Keceivers										
What to be achieved:	recommendations about energy retrofitting, because the difference of price compared to traditional rehabilitation (cheaper) and lack of awareness about energy savings through retrofitting. • It is necessary to train the technicians because they have to propose and design new and efficient technologies, it would be a good start in the knowledge transfer that training activities are proposed to help standardization of technical knowledge at the European level.									
Result(s) desired/ Learning Outcomes:	 Increased and a technology will b Furthermore, sh would serve to p 	adapted curriculu e necessary. ort-courses togeth rovide further edu	m for Bachelors an ner with other infor ucational opportur	nd Masters degree rmal learning even nities.	es in energy effici nts such as seminai	ent construction rs and workshops				
Training Type/ method (ICT Tools):	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Simulation	e-learning courses (synchronous, asynchronous)							
Participant Profile:	Participants are:	PubA, Gov, A&E	, R&D.							
Material Needed:	Presentations.									
Guidelines/ Recommendati ons	 Keep always a visual explanation of how the EE system works and is installed. Notice that simulation tools are the favorite choice for this Knowledge, so software developers need to get involved. Use videos apart for the e-material to disseminate EE building components and systems if you are a solutions designer. Experimental building projects have a lot of useful demonstration material for EE training. If you are related to an experimental building, allow visitors for a living demonstration in order to produce impulse the training experience and assist connecting EE directly to the market. Keep the experimental building updated by collaborating with solutions designers to test their EE 									
Links	www2.schneider- university.page ;	electric.com/sites http://www.yout	/corporate/en/pi ube.com/watch?v=	oducts-services/tr =chl5_z-gkWg ;	aining/energy-un	iversity/energy-				

5.4.	KT-ICT	Tools f	ło	promote	professional	contact	and	generate	knowledge	(Task
	4.4)									

Summary:	A4. The business society needs to be aware of tools to manage intellectual property.								
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand			
		Technical Solutions			Patent Offices				
Providers		Manufacturers							
		R&D							
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand			
	Public Admin								
Receivers	GOV								
What to be achieved:	 The intellectual should be to esta emergence of new Competitive cor be increased and 	property of the co blish the suitable w technologies. npanies should no I their ability to a	ompany must be c methodology for l t have to ignore t ct will be enhance	onstantly updated knowledge flow a he intellectual pro d.	I and those compo nd be renewed w perty, and that pr	iny managers ith the ofessionalism will			
Result(s) desired/ Learning Outcomes:	 The need to put industry's need to patents. However compatible, provi 	olish and make re b keep information r, experience show ided that intellect	sults freely availa n confidential and ws that promoting ual property issue	ble is often viewe protected by inte innovation and di s are understood	d as being incomp llectual property sseminating new k and managed pro	patible with rights such as nowledge can be ofessionally.			
Training Type/ method (ICT Tools):	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Mobile learning (mlearning)						
Participant Profile:	PubA, Gov, R&D,	Software, Manuf	acture						
Material Needed:	Forums or trainin the promotion and	igs where experts d dissemination of	from industry will f new products an	discuss (explain) d at the same time	how Intellectual pr e protect the inves	operty can help tment.			
Guidelines/ Recommendati	Create the apro	opriate material t	hat disseminates t	he Intellectual pro	perty procedures				
Links	<u>www.marie-meds</u> http://www.eaci-	strategic.eu/en/su -projects.eu/iee/p	uccess-stories-or-b page/Page.jsp?or	<u>est-practices/best</u> =project_detail&	<u>-practices.html</u> ; prid=2600	www.limburg.be;			



Summary:	D2. Industry needs financial support to take up results of scientific innovation.						
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand	
Providers		Technical Solutions	Renewable Energy	esco	Life Cycle Assessment		
		Manufacturers			Certificate Entries		
		Installers					
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand	
	Financial Agents					Occupants	
Receivers	Public Admin						
	GOV						
What to be achieved:	remain mere ideas or theoretical data not reach implement. bodies should create or promote a funding system that will drive appropriately the results of the investigation and solve the barrier of knowledge transfer. • Funding could help to show the research efforts, so that the knowledge base through innovation is transformed into elements that help the end user about energy retrofitting.						
Result(s) desired/ Learning Outcomes:	 Development of appropriate financial instruments to foster cooperation between industry and R&D entities. These instruments can for example include the setting up of grants for promotion of innovative products, tax revisions on items related to innovation sourcing (e.g. attendance to expo fairs, seminars, patent fees). To control financial benefits, it might be appropriate to install an associated quality assurance scheme to ensure the actual diffusion and implementation of the retrofit. 						
Training Type/ method (ICT Tools):	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Communication Tools	Blog-based learning, social networking sites,				
Participant Profile:	Finance, Gov, O	ccupants, Certificc	ate, TechSol, Man	ufactures, Installer	s, RenewEn, ESCC)	
Material Needed:	Information how t	to interract with fi	nancial instutions.	Knwoledge of find	ancial products		
Guidelines/ Recommendati ons	 Financial Institutions has to comunicate the new financial products Financial institutes has to be close to the EE Market and Industry 						
Links	www.eaci-projects.eu/iee/page/Page.jsp?op=project_detail&prid=1519_; http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8kUih_t9aCs						



Summary:	D3. Occupants need financial support to invest in EE retrofitting technology.						
Providers	,	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand	
	Public Admin				Certificate Entries		
	GOV						
				-			
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand	
Pagaiwara	Financial Agents					Occupants	
Receivers							
What to be achieved:	 The users of the buildings are the largest group of the value chain and, therefore the most important. They are who decide in most cases about the energy retrofitting kind in their housings or buildings. The public administration should financially support to users who want to implement rehabilitation technologies, rewarding them for wanting to contribute to the development and improvement of knowledge in the value chain. Due to the lack of energy awareness of these agents in the value chain, financial assistance may be the key to a large number venture to implement in your home. 						
Result(s) desired/ Learning Outcomes:	 Creating forums or trainings where experts from R&D, Finance institutions will discuss (explain) the need, opportunities to invest in EE retrofitting technology. Financial institutions should create new products optimal for different occupants, and also government can reduce taxation in energy efficiency buildings. 						
Training Type/ method (ICT Tools):	Communication Tools	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Video in learning courses				
Participant Requirements:	Occupants, Finar	nce, PubA, Gov, C	ertification Author	ities			
Material Needed:							
Guidelines/ Recommendati ons	 The produced material that promotes the financial products has to be in a understadable form the Occupants prespactive. The Finacial products has to be transparent Notice that simulation / games tools are not among the favorite choice for this Knowledge, but it can be easy for the occupants to understand the Pros /Cons of the EE retrofiting technology Use videos apart for the e-material to disseminate EE building components and systems if you are a solutions designer. Experimental building projects have a lot of useful demonstration material for EE training. If you are related to an experimental building, allow visitors for a living demonstration in order to produce impulse the training experience and assist connecting EE directly to the market. Keep the experimental building updated by collaborating with solutions designers to test their EE measures. 						
Links	<u>www.warmupnor</u> http://www.yout	<u>th.com/;www.eac</u> i ube.com/watch?v	-projects.eu/iee/ =P918zingLjE;http	page/Page.jsp?op p://www.youtube	<u>p=project_detail8</u> .com/watch?v=W	kprid=2533; _YIrxBHukM	



Summary:		A1 - Training of	traditional craftsr	nen on EE retrofit	ting innovations.	
	Quality Assurance	Demand	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand
Energy Retrofitting Services		Software	Renewable	Architect &		
		Developers	Energy	Engineer		
		Technical Solutions				
		Manufacturers				
		R&D				
	Quality Assurance	Demand	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand
Energy		Installers		Architect & Engineer		
Retrotitting						
Services						
What to be achieved:	The aim is to involve traditional craftsmen with innovative Energy Efficiency systems and techniques that can be implemented in building retrofitting					
Result(s) desired/ Learning Outcomes:	 Increase of the energy efficiency knowledge among installers and professionals of the construction sector. Expose traditional craftsmen to demonstration projects. Provide tools for the home-owner and craftsmen for decision making. Integrate Energy Efficient concepts in the traditional construction. 					
Training Type/ method (ICT Tools):	Simulation	Video in learning courses	e-book			
Participant Requirements:	Traditional installers, architects and engineers aware of only basic EE concepts.					
Material Needed:	brochures with simple explanations, e-material, simulation tools and videos, that contain demonstration of EE measures.					
Tips	 Keep always a visual and simple explanation of how the EE system works and is installed. Notice that simulation tools are the favorite choice for this Knowledge, so software developers need to get involved. Use videos apart for the e-material to disseminate EE building components and systems if you are a solutions designer. Experimental building projects have a lot of useful demonstration material for EE training. If you are related to an experimental building, allow visitors for a living demonstration in order to produce impulse the training experience and assist connecting EE directly to the market. Keep the experimental building updated by collaborating with solutions designers to test their EE measures. 					
Links	http://www.proyectoedea.com/en/ http://e4rsim2.aidico.es/ http://www.arfrisol.es/ARFRISOLportal/ http://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=UUclfsCdMjBezViybZ19sG2A http://www.u4energy.eu/web/guest/33					

5.5. KT-ICT Tools to exploit R&D findings (Task 4.5)



Summary:	C4 - When communicating research results, more focus needs to be given to practical benefits of the retrofit technology.						
Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand	
	Renewable Energy	ESCO	Renewable Energy	ESCO			
		Manufacturers		Architect & Engineer			
		R&D					
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand	
Receivers		Installers		Architect & Engineer		Building Managers	
Receivers						Occupants	
What to be achieved:	The objective is that agents involved in research, or capable to implement research results within their activity, present these results in a friendly way to society, this is, in terms of economical savings and comfort.						
Result(s) desired/ Learning Outcomes:	 Reasearch results will not get stuck in the technical side of the value chain and will flow towards the agents in charge of the decision making. Installers and Architects & Engineers will improve communication skills to demonstrate to end-users the benefits of EE solutions in a more attractive way. 						
Training Type/ method (ICT Tools):	Online forums	e-learning courses (synchronous, asynchronous)	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community portals				
Participant Requirements:	Anyone who wants to save energy in their house, including Architects & Engineers and Installers who can assist house-owners on EE decision making.						
Material Needed:	Forums and community portals are the most familiar tools for end-users, but e-material is also welcomed.						
Guidelines/ Recommendati ons	 If you are a Public Admin, foster opinion exchange in community websites between end-users regarding benefits on EE R&D results experienced. End-users listen to other end-users! Translate your results of energy or CO2 saving data, and include economical savings and comfort level information. Include images with the information you provide. Develop a "social" version of your information sheet avoiding technical language and including more interesting parameters for society. 						
Links	http://www.ase.org/blog/top-10-energy-efficiency-smartphone-apps https://www.gov.uk/government/news/save-energy-cash-this-winter http://www.smarthome.com/forum/default.asp http://blog.togetherwesave.com/						



Summary:	C2 - Real-life evaluation of research results.						
Providers	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand	
	Financial Agents	Technical Solutions			Patent Offices		
	Public Admin	Manufacturers			Life Cycle Assessment		
		R&D			Certificate Entries		
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand	
	Public Admin	Technical Solutions		Architect & Engineer	Life Cycle Assessment	Building Managers	
Receivers		Manufacturers			Certificate Entries	Occupants	
		Installers R&D					
What to be achieved:	The aim is to take the knowledge out of the labs and complete the testing of EE solutions in existing buildings in a real life scenario.						
Result(s) desired/ Learning	 Assist the solutions designers to optimize the final product considering new and random parameters. Involve demand agents with EE by experiencing energy saving measures. 						
Training Type/ method (ICT Tools):	Communication Tools	Blog-based learning, social networking sites, community portals	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences				
Participant Requirements:	End-users to test EE solutions, agents that aprticipate in the design, public bodies and quality agents to optimize the process.						
Material Needed:	Guidelines, comunity websites, and online events.						
Guidelines/ Recommendati ons	 If you are a Public Admin you can develop a program to promote collaboration between house-owners and solutions designers, considering support of finantial agents. If you are a Quality assurance agent, provide assistance for certificates in the real-life testing approach. If you are a solutions designer, develop easy understandable material that explains the system and its monitoring process. Also, look up for a way to gather the user's experiences and translate them into technical input to improve the technology. Experimental building projects are sometimes existing buildings and should be considered. 						
Links	http://enercitee.eu/Sub-Projects/RIEEBRegional-Impact-with-Energy-Efficient-Buildings,57/ http://www.renov.proyectoedea.com/es/content/objetivos-0 www.esesh.eu or www.e3soho.eu						



Summary:	C1 - Scientists need to have increased contact with the end-users in order to understand the applicability of their research.						
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand	
-	Public Admin	Manufacturers				Occupants	
Providers		Installers					
	Public Bodies Finance	Knowledge Product Providers	Energy Providers	Energy Retrofitting Services	Quality Assurance	Demand	
		Technical Solutions					
Receivers		R&D					
	T I I.						
What to be achieved:	The objective is to improve communication skills in scientists and ensure recognition of communication efforts.						
Result(s) desired/ Learning	 Increase interaction between scientists and the agents at the end of the value chain. Create new communication channels between agents to improve EE solutions with their feedback. 						
Training Type/ method (ICT Tools):	Webinars, web meetings, online conferences	Online forums	Communication Tools				
Participant Requirements:	EE solutions designers for building retrofitting.						
Material Needed:	Online events and forums or any communication tool where scientist and end-users are able to interact.						
Guidelines/ Recommendati ons	 Use simple questionnaires with scale question type. If you are an occupant, make sure the feedback provided is related to the analyzed technology. If you are a Manufacturer or Installer, you can provide valuable feedback to scientists regarding the technology production and implementations processes. If you are a Public Admin, your feeback is important regarding the chances the EE technology has to success in society and to receive an investment incentive. Public Admin, need to moderate the communication channels and foster scientist to participate on them. Also, Public Admin cam gather this feedback, and traslate it into summarized guidelines for scientist to improve comminication skills. 						
Links	http://bookshop.europa.eu/en/energy-cbWmMKABstNjAAAAEjNZEY4e5L/						



6. CONCLUSIONS

The main objective of **ee-WiSE Project** is to identify the best way of Knowledge Transfer at the EE sector regarding building retrofitting, for each agent involved at the value chain, always bearing in mind that SMEs are the main targeted subjects and taking into consideration the special conditions of the Mediterranean area. The ee-WiSE KTF is based on the work done in previous stages of the project: knowledge transfer flows analysis (WP2), knowledge needs analysis, best practices and potential solutions (WP3).

The KTF is effectively a web-based platform that consists of a number of ICT Tools that can be accessed through the project web-platform [www.ee-wise.eu] (Figure 9). In order to address the needs identified in WP3 a lesson guideline is developed for each need, specifying in detail:

- who the providers and receivers of knowledge are,
- the type as well as the format in which the knowledge should be transmitted, and
- based on the opinion of consortium partners (in their role as providers and receivers of knowledge themselves in the EE value chain) the most appropriate ICT Tools.



Figure 9: ee.WiSE website

WP4 is the first milestone to define an approach that will lead to appropriate solutions for overcoming the Knowledge transfer gaps in the Energy Efficiency sector. Moreover the KTF proposed in WP4 gives the opportunity to effectively share and disseminate the new knowledge produced, by all value chain actors and especially to the SME value chain agents.

The degree to which the lesson guidelines of WP4 (Section 5) provide adequate guidance to organizations (acting as knowledge providers) to develop engaging, and effective training material will be validated in WP5 "Framework and Tools Validation within the Value Chain and other Stakeholders". In effect WP5 will determine whether the hypothesis of the ee-WiSE initiative is valid, that is, whether the gaps in the system, formulated into specific needs can be effectively addressed, through the input provided by the lesson guidelines, and the use of the recommended ICT Tools within the Knowledge Transfer Framework developed.



The practical based evidences obtained through WP5 validation experiences will lead to the formulation of WP6 "Definition of the Knowledge Transfer Global Strategy: Guidelines and Recommendations". Still, this knowledge and information should be formulated in a practical, useful and easy way, so to maximize it usage and thus the project's impact. The most appropriate solution that would increase to the maximum degree the above is the development of a business model (WP6), that will include answers on the following 3 questions:

- a. How to generate new knowledge,
- b. How to effectively share this knowledge and
- c. And how to disseminate and use it.

In any case, the recommendations and guidelines report will address these issues from a perspective of the different parts of the value chain, including the EE market up-take, cross-sectorial cooperation, and standardization, public procurement and certification. Policy recommendation concerning the promotion and support for sustainable business models in the sector that reduce risks will be given a special attention, with an important focus on how to successfully develop multi-skilled SMEs' partnerships.

Summarizing, deliverable 4.2 demonstrated the training methods and activities that reflect the ways agents of the Energy efficiency value chain prefer to learn and presented the ways they could gain knowledge and overcome the already identified breakpoints of the knowledge transfer process. The training approach supports the use of e-material because it is easier to reach out a greater number of potential trainees and also demonstrate the benefits from the use of e-material in the best way, which is, hands on job rather than a theoretical approach.

The above approach had been based on the prerequisite that in the new era is shown a more solid interest for mobility possibilities and on-the-go approaches. This, if seen in parallel with the necessity for new skills for the new range of jobs created worldwide, clearly shows the need for digital literate people in all age groups and from all agents of the value chain, people that will have digital competencies to support the EE EU sector.